
Page 1 of 2 

   

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2020 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

20C‐0001. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

20C‐0002. Roll Call 

20C‐0003. Establishment of Quorum 
20C‐0004. Pledge of Allegiance 
20C‐0005. Reports of Standing Committees 
20C‐0006. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None.  
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20‐01 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0007. 

 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of December 23, 
2019  

3‐6  

 
20C‐0008. 

 
Approval of Amendment 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with IIW 
Engineers, Architects and Surveyors for the East Side Water System Improvement 
Project 

7‐11 

 
20C‐0009. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena Lions Club for Oktoberfest 2020, October 3, 
2020 in Depot Park 

12 

 
20C‐0010. 

 
Acceptance of the November 2019 Financial Report 

‐‐ 

Page 1 of 108



Page 2 of 2 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
19C‐0394. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Options for Downtown Parking Improvements 

 
13‐33 

 
19C‐0514. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Marketing Initiatives and Event Proposals by 
Galena Country Tourism, Including: Amazing for All Bridge, American Flag Stairs, 
Field of Dreams Interactive Walking Tour, Field of Dreams at Depot Park, Food 
Truck Fight at Depot Park, and Farm‐to‐Table Dinner on Main Street 

  
34‐42 

 
19C‐0517. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Years 
2021‐25 

 
43‐86 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  
 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

City Council    Mon. January 27  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. February 6  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. February 12  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 

Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  
Posted: Thursday, January 9, 2020 at 4:00 p.m.    Posted By: 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0011. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on 2020 Swimming Pool Rates and Wages  

 
87‐93 

 
20C‐0012. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 90 of the Galena Code of 
Ordinances Regarding Inoperable Historic Vehicles 

 
94‐96 

 
20C‐0013. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Sale of Municipally Owned 
Personal Property (Surplus Property) 

 
97‐99 

 
20C‐0014. 

 
Warrants 

 
100‐108 

20C‐0015. Alderpersons’ Comments    
20C‐0016. City Administrator’s Report    
20C‐0017. Mayor’s Report   
20C‐0018. Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters and deliberations 
concerning salary schedules. 

 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

20C‐0019. Adjournment   

Page 2 of 108



Regular Board Meeting  23 December 2019 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 23 DECEMBER 2019 
 

19C-0505 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 23 December 2019.  
 
19C-0506 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
Absent:  Hahn 
 
19C-0507 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
19C-0508 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
19C-0509 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
19C-0510 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
None.   
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA19-26 
 
19C-0511 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
DECEMBER 9, 2019 
 
19C-0512 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA20-08 FOR MOTOR 
RECONDITIONING AND SLUDGE REMOVAL AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 
19C-0513 – APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY POLICE OFFICER KEITH BRANDEL FOR 
SECONDARY EMPLOYMENT WITH P4 SECURITY SOLUTIONS 
 
Motion:    Allendorf moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve Consent Agenda, CA19-26.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
19C-0499 – SECOND READING AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE ZONING MAP TO REZONE SEVEN PARCELS IN UNIT 2 OF THE GALENA 
SCENIC MEADOWS SUBDIVISION FROM LIMITED AGRICULTURAL TO PLANNED 

Page 3 of 108



Regular Board Meeting  23 December 2019 
 

INDUSTRIAL AND A PARCEL IN THE COBBLESTONE CROSSING SUBDIVISION FROM 
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO LIMITED AGRICULTURE 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the second reading of an 
ordinance amending the zoning map to rezone seven parcels in Unit 2 of the Galena Scenic 
Meadows Subdivision from Limited Agricultural to Planned Industrial and a parcel in the 
Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision from Medium Density Residential to Limited Agriculture, 19C-
0499.   
 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

19C-0514 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON MARKETING INITIATIVES AND 
EVENT PROPOSALS BY GALENA COUNTRY TOURISM, INCLUDING:  AMAZING FOR ALL 
BRIDGE, AMERICAN FLAG STAIRS, FIELD OF DREAMS INTERACTIVE WALKING TOUR, 
FIELD OF DREAMS AT DEPOT PARK, FOOD TRUCK FIGHT AT DEPOT PARK, AND FARM-
TO-TABLE DINNER ON MAIN STREET 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to postpone item 19C-0514 to the next meeting.       
 
19C-0515 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ENGAGING BAIRD PUBLIC 
FINANCE AS MANAGING UNDERWRITER FOR THE REFUNDING OF THE CITY OF 
GALENA SERIES 2010 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
 
Motion:  Bernstein moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve engaging Baird Public Finance as 
managing underwriter for the refunding of the City of Galena Series 2010 General Obligation 
Bonds, 19C-0515.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0516 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ENGAGING CHAPMAN AND 
CUTLER, LLC AS BOND COUNSEL FOR THE REFUNDING OF THE CITY OF GALENA 
SERIES 2010 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve engaging Chapman and Cutler, LLC 
as managing underwriter for the refunding of the City of Galena Series 2010 General Obligation 
Bonds.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            

Page 4 of 108



Regular Board Meeting  23 December 2019 
 

  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0517 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2021-25 
 
Motion:  McCoy moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal 
Year 2021-25, 19C-0517.   
 
Discussion:  None.  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
19C-0518 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by McCoy, to approve the Warrants as presented, 19C-0518.     
 
Discussion:  None.  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
19C-0519 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Council wished all a Merry Christmas!   
 
Capital Improvement Plan – Westemeier noted the plan for streets looks good. Bernstein stated 
she is impressed ever year with the way the plan is set up by staff with items rated and spread 
over five years.    
 
19C-0520 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Parking Expansion – Moran reported the parking expansion project has started at Rec Park.  
Excavation has been done and the base has been installed.   
 
Trees – Moran reported, with the extended fall season, we have been able to get a dozen trees 
planted.   
 
Capital Improvement Plan – Moran thanked Council for the comments on the CIP Plan.  The 
plan is helpful in the budget process.   
 
19C-0521 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked staff for their hard work on the Capital Improvement Plan and wished all 
Happy Holidays!   
 
19C-0522 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Bernstein, to recess to Executive Session to discuss the 
following: 
  

Page 5 of 108



Regular Board Meeting  23 December 2019 
 

 Pending, probable or imminent litigation, Section 2 (c) (11) 
 Review of Executive Session Minutes, Section 2 (c) (21) 

 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried 
 
The meeting recessed at 6:40 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 6:59 p.m. 
 
19C-0523 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 
 
 

Page 6 of 108



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
 
DATE:      8 January 2020 
 
RE:      Water System Improvements – Park Avenue and HW20 
      Approval of Amendment #3 to Engineering Services Agreement 
 
 
 
Engineering design work for this project by IIW Engineers is virtually complete and we will soon 
be in a position to bid the project for a spring 2020 start. The project will be funded by an 
Illinois EPA loan with a 50% forgiveness. During the last year various design changes were 
necessary detailed as follows: 
 

 Update design plans, specifications and water model for installation of new watermain 
at intersection of HW20 and Third Street. Design changes also incorporate other 
watermains in this area that were more recently installed than previously thought. 

 Update design plans, specifications and water model for re‐routing of watermain from 
Third to Bouthillier Street, which included a new topographic survey. 

 Modifying and resubmitting IEPA permit application. 
 
The attached amendment gives further information on the required changes to the design 
contract which resulted in a cost increase of $25,000. Design costs including this amendment 
now total $110,000 which equates to 7.7% of the total construction estimate of $,1,425,000. 
This is within the expected percentage range for design engineering. 
 
I request the city council approves engineering services amendment #3 with IIW Engineers for 
an additional design fee of $25,000. 

Page 7 of 108



Page 8 of 108



Page 9 of 108



Page 10 of 108



Page 11 of 108



January 8, 2020  
 
 
 
 
Dear Mark Moran, Mayor Renner and the Galena City Council, 
 
The Galena Lions Club is asking permission to rent the Eastside River Front 
(Depot Park) for our annual fundraiser “Oktoberfest”.  The event will take place 
Sat. October 3, 2020. The Eastside River Front (Depot Park) will be used from 
11 a.m.  till 10 p.m. with live entertainment, food, drink and wiener dog races.  
We are also requesting to set the tent up a couple days before to aid in 
preparation of the event or in case of inclement weather.  The 2020 layout and 
setup will remain the same as previous years.  Also, we are asking the city to 
waive the parking fees for that day at that location.    
 
All proceeds will be used for sight and hearing-impaired community members or 
projects.  
 
We will work with the city on any issues that arise and the event should benefit 
the city as well.  
 
Please let me know if you need any further information.      
 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
 
 
 
Lynn Pease 
Oktoberfest permit committee chair 
815-238-1653 
       
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 108



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 7, 2020 

RE:    Downtown Parking  
 

Last summer, the council directed the staff to study the downtown parking situation and 
develop recommendations for consideration by the council.  In September, we presented an 
outline titled, “Developing a Holistic and Efficient Parking System”. You briefly discussed the 
report and no action was taken. At the request of council members, I am including the 
downtown parking topic on the agenda to give you an opportunity for additional review and to 
provide staff direction.   
 
The following documents are attached: 
 

1. Developing a Holistic and Efficient Parking System outline.  The outline is based on 
observations and not formal studies or surveys of motorist perceptions, utilization of 
parking spaces, traffic counts, or cost‐benefit analyses. The results of survey of 
downtown businesses conducted by the Galena Downtown Business Association (GDBA) 
is included to establish the approximate number of employees in the downtown and 
their driving/parking tendencies.  

 
2. Parking System Improvement Plan: Status of Implementation Report. This report is 

intended to be updated regularly to keep the council informed of staff activities related 
to downtown parking.   

 
3. Paid Parking Cost/Benefit Analysis. The analysis examines the pros and cons and 

financial implications of implementing paid parking on Main Street, Commerce Street 
and the side streets in between. The analysis assumes the installation of pay stations on 
each side of the street in each block. Motorists would pay for parking by entering their 
license plate. A mobile app would be available for paying by phone. Two full‐time 
enforcement officers and the software and hardware for all enforcement activities are 
included. Three cost scenarios are presented: $.50 per hour, $.75 per hour, and $1.00 
per hour. The analysis is divided into four pages: pros and cons, estimated revenue, 
estimated expense, and net return on investment.    

                                                                                                    
We are prepared to study any of the concepts or projects in more detail for further evaluation 
by the council.  We look forward to your discussion.  

 

Page 13 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 1 of 9 

 

Developing a Holistic and Efficient Parking System 

I. Existing Parking System: Inventory of Spaces 

A. Downtown District (Main Street, Commerce Street, Water Street, and 

Bench Street from Spring to Meeker) 
 

Public On‐Street  On‐Street Spaces  Percent 

Bench Street  153  13% 

Main Street  198  17% 

Commerce Street  88  8% 

Water Street  117  10% 

Meeker Street  20  2% 

Franklin Street  12  1% 

Perry Street  5  0.4% 

Washington Street  18  2% 

Green Street  4  0.3% 

TOTAL Public On‐Street Spaces  615  53% 

 

Public Parking Lots  Off‐Street Spaces  Percent 

Winery Municipal    29  2% 

City Hall Municipal    21  2% 

Commerce Street Municipal    57  5% 

Lemfco  30  3% 

Rigopolous Properties  159  14% 

Turner Hall Municipal    17  1% 

County Courthouse (Two Lots)  42  4% 

TOTAL Spaces in Public Lots  355  31% 

 
Private Off Street  Off‐Street Spaces  Percent 

McCoy Building  13  1% 

Gateway to History  10  1% 

Illinois Bank and Trust  9  1% 

Desoto Parking Ramp  95  8% 

Funeral Home Lot  20  2% 

Museum Lot (St. Michael's)  16  1% 

Burlingame Bench Street Lot  14  1% 

Behind 300 N. Main Block  16  1% 

TOTAL Spaces in Private Lots  193  17% 

        

TOTAL DOWNTOWN SPACES  1,163  100% 

   

Page 14 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 2 of 9 

 

B. Peripheral Downtown Parking (on‐street and parking lots) 
 

Public On‐Street  On‐Street Spaces  Percent 

Park Avenue  175  23% 

Johnson Street  12  2% 

TOTAL Public On‐Street Spaces  187  24% 

 
Public Parking Lots  Off‐Street Spaces  Percent 

Spring Street Municipal Lot  25  3% 

Canoe/Kayak Municipal Lot  21  3% 

Depot Municipal Lot  85  11% 

Depot Grass Overflow Area  450  59% 

TOTAL Spaces in Public Lots  581  76% 

        

TOTAL PERIPHERAL SPACES  768  100% 
 

C. Other Sizable Outlying Parking Areas 
 

Hotel Parking Lots   Off‐Street Spaces  Percent 

Ramada  231  10% 

Country Inn & Suites  92  4% 

Stoney Creek Inn  71  3% 

Best Western  51  2% 

Irish Cottage  236  11% 

Grant Hills  29  1% 

TOTAL Spaces in Hotel Lots  710  32% 

 
Other Sizable Parking Lots  Off‐Street Spaces  Percent 

Galena Gazette  18  1% 

Grant's Home (Two Lots)  35  2% 

Rec Park  253  11% 

Walmart  496  22% 

Honeywell  155  7% 

Galena Square  255  11% 

Galena Public Schools  296  13% 

TOTAL Spaces in Other Lots  1,508  68% 

        

TOTAL OTHER PARKING SPACES  2,218  100% 
 

 

Page 15 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 3 of 9 

 

II. Employee Parking 

1. Galena Downtown Business Association (GDBA) surveyed downtown 

businesses in the summer of 2019 and compiled the following results: 

a) 808 total employees in Downtown District  

b) 679 employees work in the Downtown District on average weekend day 

c) 105 employees walk to work in the Downtown District 

d) 76 private parking spaces are supplied for employees by the employers 

2. Based on the survey results and the inventory of public and private 

parking spaces in the Downtown District, approximately 50% of 

downtown parking spaces could be occupied by employees (574 

employees who drive and park in one of 1,163 public spaces—assuming 

each employee drives separately) 

3. Common perception is that many business owners and employees park 

on Main Street and other premium spaces during their work hours 

III. Public Perception of Parking in Galena 

A. Without study of actual parking usage, we can only make general 

observations   

1. Perceptions of Merchants: 

a) Need ability to access car during the day for errands 

b) Some merchants park on Main Street, others parking remotely 

c) Survey needed to reach firm conclusions 

2. Perceptions of Employees:  

a) Parking availability depends on day of week and shift start time  

b) Employees generally know where to find parking even when town is 

busy 

c) Survey needed to reach firm conclusions 

3. Perceptions of Residents:  

a) Residents understand the parking system 

b) Some residents avoid downtown during busiest times 

c) Residents generally know where to find parking even when town is busy 

d) Survey needed to reach firm conclusions 

4. Perceptions of Visitors:  

a) City receives very few complaints about parking  

b) Convenient parking can be difficult to find, especially on first pass  

c) Visitors want to park lawfully and are generally willing to pay for 

parking—especially all‐day parking  

d) Demand for parking conveys the desirability of Galena as a destination 

e) Survey needed to reach conclusions 

Page 16 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 4 of 9 

 

IV. Parking Usage 

A. Without study of actual parking usage, we can only make general 

observations  

1. When is there clearly a surplus of downtown parking? 

a) Annually on weekdays, Monday‐Thursday 

(1) All day and night 

b) Seasonally on holidays, Fridays and weekends  

(1) November‐May 

(2) Before noon 

(3) After 7:00 p.m. (after 5:00 on Sundays) 

2. When is there an apparent deficiency of downtown parking? 

a) Seasonally on holidays, Fridays and weekends 

(1) June‐October 

(2) Between noon and 7:00 p.m.  

3. Remote lots and second tier residential streets near downtown (Depot 

Park, below the Gazette, Park Avenue, Bouthillier Street, Franklin Street, 

Dewey Avenue) are typically full only on the busiest weekends in the fall 

V. Possible Parking System Improvements 

A. Community Service Officer 

1. Fill vacant position in the Police Department 

2. Officer to provide information to motorists and pedestrians about 

parking and wayfinding 

3. Enforce parking regulations in the Downtown District 

4. Requires purchase of updated/new hardware and software system for 

tracking and ticketing 
 

B. Marketing 

1. Enhanced emphasis on communicating parking system to visitors before 

they arrive 

a) Improve parking maps 

b) Use parking app to allow visitors to pay for parking by mobile phone 

c) Added emphasis in visitor guides 

d) Identify types of parking (paid, short term, long term, on‐street, lots) 

e) Consider tutorials for how to use machines for paid parking (print and 

video tutorials) 

f) Identify pedestrian routes from parking areas and hotels/motels 

2. Develop informational campaign for merchants and employees to 

communicate parking and commuting options   

Page 17 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 5 of 9 

 

a) Map preferred parking areas for long term daily employee parking 

b) Encourage carpooling 

c) Encourage use of shuttle if available 

d) Encourage use of bikes and scooters for commuting 

 

C. Comprehensive and coordinated wayfinding signage system 

a) Signage must begin on the highway on east and west gateways 

b) Signage should continue at key intersections off the highway 

c) Clearly identify all public parking lots and whether the lot is free or pay 

d) Identify lot by unique name, number or letter 

e) Emphasize “free parking” 

f) Possibly identify time to walk to downtown from each remote lot 

 

D. Shuttle Service 

1. Explore hotel funded shuttle system to promote leaving vehicles at hotels 

2. Explore public funded shuttle system if a dedicated funding source is 

available  

a) Paid on‐street parking could be a funding source 

b) Possible shuttle operators: 

(1) Private sector transportation providers 

(2) City owned and operated 

(3) Explore possibility of an intergovernmental agreement with Jo 

Daviess County to expand current transit contract with Jo 

Daviess County Transit    

c) Operate during times of peak parking space deficiency in downtown 

d) Service to Depot Park lot  

e) Service to hotels 

f) Service to other parking areas through partnerships (schools, Wal‐Mart, 

etc.) 

3. Consider requiring event‐sponsored shuttle service to utilize remote lots 

during large events such as Oktoberfest, Country Fair, and Corkless  
 

E. Valet Parking 

1. Review and modify current parking ordinances to facilitate valet service 

a) Service to be provided, if desired, by individual or groups of businesses 

b) May require use of parking spaces or loading zones for drop off/pick up 

c) Allow use of City lots for valet parking (Depot, Rec Park, old Wastewater 

Plant) 

 

Page 18 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 6 of 9 

 

F. Paid Parking 

1. Continue paid parking in municipal lots: Winery, Commerce Street, City 

Hall 

a) Consider increasing all‐day rate to match privately owned lots  

b) Consider increasing all‐day rate charged by community groups during 

special events from $5 to $10 for consistency throughout town and to 

increase revenue shared with City 

2. Consider paid parking on Main Street, Commerce Street, and connecting 

side streets  

a) Electronic pay kiosk/station on each block 

b) Pay at kiosk or by using mobile phone app (ex. Passport Parking App) 

c) 365 days a year, 10:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. (possible hours) 

d) Hourly rates (possibly adjusted seasonally) with potential to park all day 

e) Graduated fines (each successive fine is more costly) to discourage 

violations 

f) Requires seven‐day‐a‐week police enforcement  

(1) Pros 

(a) Discourages merchant/employee parking in premium 

spaces 

(b) Potentially creates revenue stream for other 

services/amenities 

(c) Paid parking is accepted and common in small tourist 

communities 

(i) Wisconsin Dells, Wisconsin 

(ii) Lake Geneva, Wisconsin 

(iii) Breckenridge, Colorado 

(iv) Eureka Springs, Arkansas 

(v) Sedona, Arizona 

(2) Cons 

(a) Less hospitable than free on‐street parking 

(b) Likely to be some confusion/complaints from residents 

and visitors, at least initially  

(c) Requires construction, administration, enforcement, 

and maintenance  

(d) Could deter Galena residents from visiting downtown 

3. Dynamically priced parking  

a) Sensors monitor parking/demand  

b) Pricing automatically adjusts to meet parking space occupancy targets 

c) Relatively new technology that could be a future option 

 

Page 19 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 7 of 9 

 

G. Free Parking 

1. Continue to offer free parking in remote areas, including: 

a) On‐street 3‐hours spaces (if paid parking is not adopted) 

b) Side streets east of Commerce Street 

c) Water Street 

d) Depot Park lot and overflow areas 

e) Other remote lots 
 

H. Explore Opportunities for Expanding Surface Parking 

1. East Side: former site of gas tanks/Davis storage buildings  

a) Will be all city‐owned in January 2020 

b) Approximately 60‐space potential 

c) Free parking during busiest weekends 

d) Parking on grass engineered for vehicles 

e) Access to downtown via Meeker Street or Grant Park pedestrian routes 

f) Add to shuttle route as needed  

2. West Side: Reconstruct municipal lot between Commerce Street and 

Water Street 

a) Incorporate Washington Street into the lot 

b) Improve configuration to add spaces 

c) Consider motorcycle and compact car parking to maximize space use 

d) Consider electric vehicle charging spaces or plan for later installation 

e) Improvements to filter and detain storm water, landscaping 

3. West Side: Old Wastewater Plant 

a) Approximately 25‐space potential 

b) Free parking 

c) Could be opened on busiest weekends 

d) Minimal cost to make operational  

4. West Side: Explore opportunities with Bench Street funeral home, 

Westwick Foundry and Lemfco Foundry to fully utilize existing surface 

parking—potentially through lease arrangements   

a) Westwick owns gravel lot across Claude Street from the foundry. 

Explore possibility of paving, striping and signing for public parking 

b) Explore possibility of marking and signing Lemfco property on Water 

Street side for public parking 

c) Communicate interest in working with these properties/owners for 

long‐term parking system enhancements  

   

Page 20 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 8 of 9 

 

I. Designated Off‐Street Motorcycle Parking  

1. Conveys that motorcyclists are welcome  

2. Encourages most efficient use of parking space 

3. Utilize areas that are too small for vehicle parking (Water Street has areas 

that are underutilized) 

4. Designate spaces in municipal lots seasonally for use by motorcycles  

5. Include motorcycle parking on maps  
 

J. Improve Pedestrian Connectivity  

1. Assess pedestrian routes from parking areas to downtown 

2. Identify improvements needed to existing routes 

3. Identify new routes that could improve use of remote parking 

4. Consider opportunities to improve signage and maps/apps for pedestrian 

wayfinding 

 

K. New Parking Structure(s) 

1. Would have an immediate benefit during peak demand parking times 

2. Limited options for locations to construct 

3. Very expensive to construct ($20,000‐$30,000 per above ground space) 

4. Requires administration/operation and maintenance  

5. Would likely be underutilized most of the time 

6. Parking fees would not likely cover debt service, maintenance and 

administration 

7. Would likely require new funding source such as special property tax 

assessment or special service area tax for downtown businesses 
  

VI. Other Parking and Circulation Improvements 

A. Ride Share and Taxi 

1. Review and modify current ordinances to facilitate ride sharing services 

like Uber and Lyft in addition to traditional taxi services and charter 

services 

a) License operators as permitted by law to enhance public safety 

b) Seek acceptance of Galena by Uber as a service location 

c) Lyft may already be operating in Galena 

 

Page 21 of 108



  September 18, 2019 

Page 9 of 9 

 

B. Alternate Forms of Transportation—Passenger Rail 

1. Continue to lobby for and support the expansion of passenger rail with 

service to Galena 

2. Visitors arriving by rail would not require parking 

3. Depot and Depot parking areas would be used as hub 

C. Alternative Forms of Transportation—Bikes and Electric Bikes 

1. Encourage the use of bikes to travel to the downtown 

2. Provide more places for storing/locking bikes 

3. Designate bike routes and bike storage areas on visitor maps 

4. Spring Street highway project will provide dedicated bike path to the 

west edge of the city 
 

VII. Research and Monitor Technology 

A. Monitor trends in technology that could affect or improve parking system 

1. Autonomous vehicles that self‐park, possibly remotely, and using less 

ground space than driver‐parked vehicles 

2. Automated parking garages that utilize robotic elevators to park more 

vehicles in less space 

3. Utilization of sensors to monitor parking with communication to 

motorists about location of available parking 
 

B. Continue to Monitor Downtown District parking  

1. Attempt to assess impact of vacation rental parking as the industry 

continues to build‐out 

2. Evaluate possibility of vacation rental parking impact fee for properties 

that do not provide off‐street parking 

3. Evaluate reducing hours/days of alternate side parking if demand for 

overnight parking increases 
 

Page 22 of 108



Page 1 of 7 
 

Parking System Improvement Plan: Status of Implementation                                                                                                                             January 6, 2020 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
I. Community Service 

Officer 
A. Vacant position in the Police Department historically responsible for 

downtown parking enforcement and providing community information to 
visitors 

 

  1. Fill vacant position in the Police Department  The hiring process will begin in March 2020 with an anticipated 
employment start in June 2020.  Hiring to be conducted by Chief of Police 
and City Administrator.  The job description and number of employees will 
depend on whether the council chooses to implement paid parking. 

  2. Requires purchase of updated/new hardware and software 
systems for tracking and ticketing 

The type of new equipment purchased will depend on whether the council 
chooses to implement paid on‐street parking.   

     
Item  Improvement  Action 

II. Marketing  A. Enhanced emphasis on communicating parking system to visitors before 
they arrive 

 

  1. Improve parking maps and increase emphasis on communicating 
parking locations, rules, and costs in visitor guides 

Met on November 6 with Galena Country Tourism to begin discussing 
development of a new parking map and communication plans.  The 
tentative plan is to create a new portal on the VisitGalena.org website titled 
“Easy Park—Galena”.  The website would include information for visitors, 
employees, and residents to make parking as easy as possible.  

  2. Develop tutorials (print and video) for how to use pay stations for 
paid parking and  

 

  3. Use parking app to allow visitors to pay for parking by mobile 
phone 

The app would be used only if on‐street paid parking is implemented. 

  B. Develop informational campaign for merchants and employees to 
communicate parking and commuting options 

See above. 

  1. Map preferred parking areas for long‐term daily employee parking  

  2. Encourage carpooling   

  3. Encourage use of shuttle if available    

  4. Encourage use of bikes and motor scooters for commuting   

Page 23 of 108



Page 2 of 7 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
III. Wayfinding  A. Develop a comprehensive and coordinated wayfinding system that 

includes signage: on the highway on east and west gateways, at key 
intersections, to clearly identify all public parking lots and whether the lot 
is free or pay, pedestrian routes from remote parking lots 

Coordinate plan development with mapping and communication/marketing 
materials. 

     

Item  Improvement  Action 
IV. Shuttle Service  A. Explore hotel‐funded shuttle system to promote leaving vehicles at hotels  

  B. Explore public‐funded shuttle system if a dedicated funding source is 
available.   

 

  1. Paid on‐street parking could be a funding source   

  2. Possible shuttle operators:   

  a. Private sector transportation providers   

  b. City‐owned and operated   

  c. Expand current transit contract with Jo Daviess County Transit  Discussing possibilities with Jo Daviess County Transit.  

  3. Operate during times of peak parking space deficiency in the 
downtown 

 

  4. Service to Depot Parking Lot, hotels, possibly other parking areas at 
Walmart, schools, etc.  

 

  C. Consider requiring event‐sponsored shuttle service to utilize remote lots 
during large events such as Oktoberfest, Country Fair, Corkless, 
Halloween Parade, Fourth of July. Country Fair shuttle service could be 
model for other events. 

Include shuttle requirement in permits/use agreements that are approved 
on an event‐by‐event basis by city council.  

     
  

Page 24 of 108



Page 3 of 7 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
V. Valet Parking  A. Review and modify current parking ordinances to facilitate valet service   We may want to delay any action on this item until we know there is 

interest from the business community. 

  1. Service to be provided, if desired, by individual or groups of businesses   

  2. May require use of parking spaces or loading zones for drop off/pick up   

  3. Allow use of City lots for valet parking (Depot, Rec Park, old 
Wastewater Plant? 

The paving of the old Wastewater Plant lot is included as a priority in the 
Capital Improvement Plan.  

     

Item  Improvement  Action 
VI. Paid Parking  A. Continue paid parking in municipal lots: Winery, Commerce Street, City Hall   

  1. Continue paid parking in municipal lots: Winery, Commerce Street, City 
Hall 

 

  2. Consider increasing all‐day rate charged by community groups during 
special events from $5 to $10 for consistency throughout town and to 
increase revenue shared with City 

This will require city council action.  The decision should be made soon to 
allow Country Fair time to include in their marketing materials. 

  B. Consider paid parking on Main Street, Commerce Street, and connecting 
side streets 

Developed cost/benefit financial projection for installation of pay stations, 
mobile app, and enforcement.  See attachments. 

  1. Electronic pay kiosk/station on each block  Conferenced with pay station provider Total Parking Solutions about their 
products and possible application in Galena.  Obtained cost proposal.  

  2. Pay at station or by using mobile phone with app   Conferenced with mobile app company Passport Parking and reviewed 
their product line for customer remote pay and parking enforcement. 
Obtained cost proposal.  Passport heavily within our region, including 
Dubuque.  

  3. 365 days a year, 10 a.m. to 8 p.m. (possible hours)  Used these hours for the cost/benefit analysis. 
  4. Hourly rates with potential to park all day  Three different hourly rate options included in the analysis.   

  5. Graduated fines (each successive fine is more costly) to discourage 
violations 

To be conservative, cost/benefit analysis does not include any fine 
revenue.  

  6. Requires seven‐day‐a‐week police enforcement   Included enforcement cost, including new personnel, in cost/benefit 
analysis. 

     
 

Page 25 of 108



Page 4 of 7 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
VII. Free Parking  A. Continue to offer free parking in remote areas, including:   

  1. On‐street 3‐hour spaces (if paid parking is not adopted)   

  2. Side streets east of Commerce Street   

  3. Water Street   

  4. Depot Park and adjacent overflow areas   

  5. Other remote lots   

     
Item  Improvement  Action 

VIII. Expand Surface 
Parking 

A. East Side: former site of gas tanks/Davis storage buildings   

  1. City will own the site in January 2020  Property transfer date is August 2020.  Second of two buildings should be 
removed in fall of 2020.  Overflow parking area could be created. 

  2. Potential for approximately 60 spaces   

  3. Free parking during busiest weekends   

  4. Parking on grass engineered for vehicles   

  5. Access to downtown via Meeker Street or Grant Park pedestrian 
routes 

 

     

  B. West Side: reconstruct municipal lot between Commerce Street and 
Water Street 

Design and engineering is underway for reconstruction of the lot. Included 
as a priority in Capital Improvement Plan.  Aiming for spring 2020 
construction.     

  1. Incorporate Washington Street into the lot  See above. 

  2. Improve configuration to add space   

  3. Consider motorcycle and compact car parking to maximize use of 
space 

 

  4. Consider electric vehicle charging spaces or plan for later installation   

  5. Improvements to filter and detain storm water, landscaping   

     
  

Page 26 of 108



Page 5 of 7 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
  C. West Side: side of old treatment plant   
  1. Approximately 25 space potential  The paving of the old Wastewater Plant lot is included as a priority in the 

Capital Improvement Plan. 

  2. Free parking   

  3. Could be opened on busiest weekends   

  4. Possible site for valet parking   

  5. Minimal cost to make operational   

     

  D. West Side: explore opportunities with Bench Street funeral home, 
Westwick Foundry and Lemfco Foundry to fully utilize existing surface 
parking 

 

  1. Westwick owns gravel lot across Claude Street from the foundry.  
Explore possibility of paving, striping, and signing for public parking 

Met with Westwick owner Bill Friede the week of October 14, 2019.  
Discussed options for improving the lot.  Followed‐up with letter expressing 
interest in the property.  Friede is considering the options.    

  2. Explore the possibility of marking and signing the Lemfco property on 
the Water Street side for public parking on weekends 

  

  3. Communicate interest in working with these properties/owners for 
long‐term parking system enhancements 

 

     

Item  Improvement  Action 
IX. Designated Off‐Street 

Motorcycle Parking 
A. Conveys that motorcyclists are welcome and encourages most efficient 

use of parking space 
 

  1. Utilize areas that are too small for vehicle parking    

  2. Designate spaces in municipal lots seasonally for use by motorcyclists    

  3. Include motorcycle parking on maps   

     
  

Page 27 of 108



Page 6 of 7 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
X. Improve Pedestrian 

Connectivity 
A. Assess pedestrian routes from parking areas to downtown    

  1. Identify improvements needed to existing routes  Exploring the addition of directional signs from Depot lot to Grant Park (and 
over pedestrian bridge). Wayfinding signs are being designed for inside 
Grant Park. 

  2. Identify new routes that could improve remote parking    

  3. Consider opportunities to improve signage and maps/apps for 
pedestrian wayfinding 

 

     
Item  Improvement  Action 

XI. New Parking 
Structure(s) 

A. Would have an immediate benefit during peak demand times   

  1. Limited options for locations to construct   

  2. Very expensive to construct ($20,000‐$30,000 per space)   

  3. Requires administration and maintenance   

  4. Would likely be underutilized most of the time   

  5. Parking fees would not likely cover debt service, maintenance and 
administration 

 

  6. Would likely require new funding source such as special property tax 
assessment, special service area for downtown businesses, or paid 
on‐street parking 

Exploring the possible funding mechanisms and their pros and cons.  A 
Special Service Area could be created to generate additional property tax to 
fund the parking structure(s).  A Business Development District could be 
created where additional sales tax and/or hotel tax could fund the parking 
structure(s). 

     

Item  Improvement  Action 
XII. Other Parking and 

Circulation 
Improvements 

A. Ride share and taxi   

  

Page 28 of 108



Page 7 of 7 
 

Item  Improvement  Action 
  1. Review and modify current ordinances to facilitate ride sharing 

services like Uber and Lyft in addition to traditional taxi services and 
charter services 

Started review of state law and examples of ordinances to permit ride share 
services. These businesses are known as Transportation Network 
Companies (TNCs) and can be treated much like taxis in terms of licensing 
vehicles and drivers.  Draft ordinance could be prepared for council 
consideration. 

  2. Seek acceptance of Galena by Uber as a service location  Adopt TNC ordinance first. 

  3. Confirm Lyft’s presence in Galena  It appears that Lyft drivers are operating in Galena.  

     

  B. Alternate forms of transportation—passenger rail   

  1. Continue to lobby for and support the expansion of passenger rail 
with service to Galena 

Galena has a city council representative on the stakeholder committee 
working to apply for a grant to perform a feasibility study.  The study is the 
first step in identifying the needs that will require funding.  Kick‐off meeting 
completed. 

  2. Visitors arriving by rail would not require parking   

  3. Depot and Depot parking areas would be used as hub  Preliminary plans were prepared some years ago for the reconstruction of 
the platform adjacent to the Depot.  The platform will be required for 
service to Galena.   

     
 

Page 29 of 108



DOWNTOWN PARKING: PAY BY TIME PROS AND CONS 
 

Converting from three‐hour limited parking to pay by time parking on Main Street and possibly 
Commerce Street would have pros and cons. The following is a summary of some of the pros 
and cons and is intended to facilitate discussion about paying to park on the street in 
downtown Galena.  
 
PROS 

 Improve availability of spaces for business patrons.  Pay by time parking could be 
expected to create more turnover of the most convenient spaces than free three‐hour 
limited parking. Pay parking could also be expected to discourage employees from 
parking in prime on‐street spaces.  This would improve opportunities for 
customers/patrons to park close to businesses. 

 
 Reduce congestion. Implementation of pay by time parking can reduce traffic 

congestion by increasing turnover of spaces and encouraging carpooling, remote 
parking, and the use of other modes of transportation.  

 
 Increased city revenue. Net revenue from parking could be used to improve the parking 

system by funding a shuttle and/or additional parking.  A shuttle could more effectively 
utilize existing public and private remote parking lots and reduce congestion during the 
busiest times—particularly weekends.  
  

 Free parking is still available.  Parking would still be available at no cost east of Main 
Street (or east of Commerce Street if Commerce is pay to park) and in all remote lots. 
Motorists using free parking would need to walk farther than those paying to park to 
reach Main Street or utilize a shuttle if available.  
   

CONS 
 System costs. While net revenues could be positive, implementation, enforcement, and 

management costs would be significant and would add complexity to our local 
government operations.  Systems would require updates and replacement over time. 

 
 Less friendly.  Pay by time parking could be considered less hospitable than free parking 

in the eyes of the visitor, although many visitors are accustomed to paying to park. 
Confusion about the parking rules or confusion about operating the pay stations could 
frustrate visitors and residents.  

 
 Less Free Parking.  Finding a free parking space, especially in the downtown proper, 

could be more difficult.  
    

 Adverse for downtown employees. Less free parking would make it more challenging 
for employees to conveniently park in the downtown and could make it more difficult 
for businesses to recruit and retain employees. 

Page 30 of 108



Daily Hours 

in 

Operation  Hourly Rate  evenue Per Space 

Daily (50% 

of Max.)

Extended 

Weekly (7 

Days)

Extended 

Annually 

(52 Weeks)

Annual Revenue 

Generated per Pay 

Station (11 Spaces 

Per Pay Station)

Annual Revenue 

Projected (17 Pay 

Stations)

10 0.50$             5.00$                  2.50$         17.50$      910.00$      10,010.00$                 170,170.00$           

10 0.75$             7.50$                  3.75$         26.25$      1,365.00$   15,015.00$                 255,255.00$           

10 1.00$             10.00$                5.00$         35.00$      1,820.00$   20,020.00$                 340,340.00$           

Daily Hours 

in 

Operation  Hourly Rate  Max. Revenue Daily (50%)

Extended 

Weekly (7 

Days)

Extended 

Annually 

(52 Weeks)

Annual Revenue 

Generated per Pay 

Station (9 Spaces Per 

Station)

Annual Revenue 

Projected (11 Pay 

Stations)

10 0.50$             5.00$                  2.50$         17.50$      910.00$      8,190.00$                   90,090.00$             

10 0.75$             7.50$                  3.75$         26.25$      1,365.00$   12,285.00$                 135,135.00$           

10 1.00$             10.00$                5.00$         35.00$      1,820.00$   16,380.00$                 180,180.00$           

 

0.50$                       260,260.00$       

0.75$                       390,390.00$       

1.00$                       520,520.00$       

10 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

10 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

Estimated Annual Revenue

Estimated Annual Revenue from 99 Parking Spaces (Includes Side Streets between Main and Commerce)

Total Annual Revenue

Revenue Based Per Parking Space on 50% Annual Occupancy

Paid Parking on Main Street from Floodgates to Meeker Street

Paid Parking on Commerce Street and Side Streets Between

Revenue Based Per Parking Space on 50% Annual Occupancy

Hours of Operation 

10 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

10 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

Hours of Operation 

10 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

10 a.m. to 8 p.m. 

Page 31 of 108



Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Units Unit Cost Total Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost TOTAL

Pay Station (Main Street) 17 $8,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

WebOffice Software (Main Street) 17 $960 $16,320 $16,320 $16,320 $16,320 $16,320 $81,600

Warranty (Main Street) 17 $780 $13,260 $13,260 $13,260 $13,260 $13,260 $66,300

Enforcement Hardware 1 $1,350 $1,350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,350

Signs 75 $40 $3,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000

Enforcement Service Charges (Cellular) 1 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600 $600 $3,000

Enforcement Supplies 1 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $10,000

Enforcement Personnel 2 $55,600 $111,200 $111,200 $111,200 $111,200 $111,200 $556,000

Loan Principal Expense (Pay Stations) 1 $146,200 $29,240 $29,240 $29,240 $29,240 $29,240 $146,200

Loan Interest Expense (Pay Stations) 1 $12,330 $2,466 $2,466 $2,466 $2,466 $2,466 $12,330

TOTAL MAIN STREET $179,436 $175,086 $175,086 $175,086 $175,086 $879,780

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Units Unit Cost Total Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost TOTAL

Pay Station (Commerce Street) 11 $8,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

WebOffice Software (Commerce Street) 11 $960 $10,560 $10,560 $10,560 $10,560 $10,560 $52,800

Warranty (Commerce Street) 11 $780 $8,580 $8,580 $8,580 $8,580 $8,580 $42,900

Signs 40 $40 $1,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,600

Loan Principal Expense (Pay Stations) 1 $94,600 $18,920 $18,920 $18,920 $18,920 $18,920 $94,600

Loan Interest Expense (Pay Stations) 1 $8,000 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $8,000

TOTAL COMMERCE STREET $41,260 $39,660 $39,660 $39,660 $39,660 $199,900

TOTAL MAIN AND COMMERCE $220,696 $214,746 $214,746 $214,746 $214,746 $1,079,680

Downtown Paid Parking Expense Estimates
Main Street

Commerce Street and Side Streets

Downtown Paid Parking Expense Estimates

Page 32 of 108



Revenue $850,850 Revenue $1,276,275 Revenue $1,701,700

Expense $879,780 Expense $879,780 Expense $879,780

5‐Year Net ‐$28,930 5‐Year Net $396,495 5‐Year Net $821,920

Annual Net ‐$5,786 Annual Net $79,299 Annual Net $164,384

Revenue $450,450 Revenue $675,675 Revenue $900,900

Expense $199,900 Expense $199,900 Expense $199,900

5‐Year Net $250,550 5‐Year Net $475,775 5‐Year Net $701,000

Annual Net $50,110 Annual Net $95,155 Annual Net $140,200

5‐YEAR TOTAL $221,620 5‐YEAR TOTAL $872,270 5‐YEAR TOTAL $1,522,920

ANNUAL NET $44,324 ANNUAL NET $174,454 ANNUAL NET $304,584

Note:

Revenue estimates do not include any revenue for parking citation fines.

Main Street 

Commerce & Side Streets

Main Street 

Commerce & Side Streets

Assuming 50% Occupancy/10:00 AM to 8:00 PM
Paid Parking 5‐Year Net Return on Investment Estimates

$.50 Per Hour $.75 Per Hour $1.00 Per Hour

Commerce & Side Streets

Main Street 

Page 33 of 108



Page 34 of 108



Stair Activation
Pop-up campaign installations

WHO: Galena Country Tourism (GCT) will organize all efforts secure products, erect and remove the installations, and monitor 
its duration, including all fees associated with each phase of this project. 

WHAT: Approval to reinstall #AmazingForAll flags and removable, recyclable decals on the pedestrian bridge and pedestrian 
bridge stairs. This installation will be exactly like last year, with industry-standard, 3’x5’ flags and residue-free, removable decals.

- Approval to install similar decals, in the design of an American Flag, on the Green Street stairs. Decals will be removable and 
residue-free.

WHEN: #AmazingForAll will run from June 1-28.  American Flag Stairs will run from June 28-July 19.

During that time frame, the GCT staff will monitor the install and handle any needed upkeep or adjustments - although we expect 
none. The time frame is meant to be a “surprise,” short-lived install to drawn attention and curiosity amongst visitors, residents and 
press. We believe this “surprise” will draw additional exposure in terms of public relation efforts within our bureau, community and 
state-wide campaign.

WHY?: GCT aligns their marketing efforts with the Illinois Office of Tourism. A large and successful campaign, initiated by the 
state in 2017, is #AmazingForAll. This campaign embraces difference and diversity and welcomes everyone to experience the 
places and people that make it so amazing, including LGBTQ travelers. Galena has a rich history of inclusion and with June being 
“Pride Month” many destinations ramp up their LGBTQ campaigns during this time. Last-year, our #AmazingForAll install was a 
huge success within the community and many locals voiced their support via social media. 

Another common accolade Galena receives is “Best Small Town” in Illinois based on our small town America look/feel and our 
community’s welcoming spirit. We believe the American Flag Green Street stair activation will boost our media presence during 
the month of July, capturing America small town accolades and many visitor and media images of the install. 

Last year’s bridge install:  
Numerous community support posts & media pickups.

Mock-up of Green St. install: 
A digital rendering of the proposed activation.

Page 35 of 108



Field of Dreams activation
Pop-up campaign and two-day event

WHO: Galena Country Tourism (GCT) will organize all logistics, including efforts to secure permits, hire and organize security 
and safety as well as cover installation costs. We will erect, remove and monitor installations, including all fees associated with 
each phase. The two-day event will include a community relations plan to inform residents and build local support and a digital 
promotion campaign to market to visitors.

WHAT: Approval to install no more than 10 removable sidewalk decals and possible building decals, with owner permission, in 
front of locations notably captured in the Field of Dreams film. 
- Approval to hang a Chisholm, MN banner, above Main Street, near 237 S Main, as featured in the film.
- Approval to erect a phone booth photo-opt, pending ADA ordinances, at the corner of Green and Main St.
- Approval to park a 1963 Mercury Monterey near 116 S. Main St, from Aug. 9-15, as featured in the film.
- Approval to reserve Depot Park for a two-day event, Sun., Aug. 9-Mon. Aug. 10, in partnership with the Galena Historical 
Society. This family-friendly event will feature live music, local food & drink, a screening of Field of Dreams and more.

WHEN: Pop-up campaign will run from June-August. Field of Dreams event at Depot will run Aug. 9-10. 

During that time frame, the GCT staff will monitor the install and handle any needed upkeep or adjustments - although we expect 
none. The time frame is meant to be “short-lived” to drawn attention and curiosity amongst visitors, residents and press. We 
believe this will draw additional exposure in terms of public relation efforts within our bureau, community and state-wide campaign, 
including all coverage of the MLB game taking place at the Field of Dreams on Thu., Aug. 13.

WHY?: Galena pitch-hit for Chisholm, MN in the filming of the fan-favorite, Field of Dreams. Our intention is to bring the scenes 
from the movie back to life, creating an interactive experience that includes a coordinating web presence, digital and hard-copy 
maps, a detailed press outreach campaign and more. 
The two-day event will take place on the Sunday and Monday, prior to the MLB event, to extend the weekend experience for 
visitors. This will potentially boost more lodging bookings. A screening of the film will draw visitors and locals alike to experience 
Galena through the eyes of Universal Studios, giving viewers a glimpse into Galena’s past while celebrating the beautiful backdrop 
of historic downtown Galena. The event will include live-music, family fun, food and movie inspired experiences.

Pop-up campaign info: 

PVC-free aluminum foil base sidewalk  decals

- Ability to conform to uneven surfaces
- Installation without specialized tools
- Certified non-slip surface
- Easy, clean removal and can be recycled

Scenes we’d like to recreate

Page 36 of 108



New Destination Experiences
Summer 2020 food-inspired events 

WHO: Galena Country Tourism (GCT) will organize all logistics, including efforts to secure permits, hire and organize security/
safety as well as cover signage and shuttle costs. Each event will include a community relations plan to inform residents and build 
local support and be paired with a digital promotions campaign to market to visitors.  

WHAT: Approval to reserve Depot Park and its parking lot for a one-day event, Sat., June 6, in partnership with the Food Truck 
Fight. This come and go, family-friendly event will feature traveling and local food vendors, kids activities and live music. Portion of 
proceeds will be donated to local charities.
- Approval to reserve Main Street, from 130 S. Main to 100 S. Main for a one-day, Farm-to-Table event, Thu., Aug. 6. This event 
will be hosted by a world-renowned organization with 20 years experience. It will featuring celebrity chefs and includes local farmers 
and makers. Portion of the proceeds will be donated to local charities. Traffic will be able to flow via detour on Washington St and 
Hill St.
- Approval to reserve all parking spots along Washington Street during one-day event Farm-to-Table event, Thu., Aug. 6.

WHEN: The Food Truck Fight event will run from Noon-8 p.m.. The park and parking lot will need to be reserved Fri. afternoon - 
Sun. morning. 
- The Farm-to-Table event will run from 4-9 p.m., Thu., Aug. 6. Main Street will need to be reserved from 10 a.m. - Midnight. 
- Washington Street parking spots will need to be reserved from 8 a.m. - Midnight on Thu., Aug. 6.

WHY?: GCT’s strategic planning works to advance our community and supports the evolution of a desirable destination 
for travellers, with a sole focus on the supply side of tourism, by providing compelling experiences, quality infrastructure, and 
remarkable services to entice repeat visitation. Tourism expereinces boost our economy, employ residents, enrich our businesses 
and pays for important public services.
- GCT only partners with reputable brands. The Farm-to-Table event has previously been held in all 50 states and in 15 countries. 
Galena has been selected as 1 of 3-5 cities, throughout the world, to host this event in 2020. It will draw high-end visitors and garner  
national attention. This event is also on a midweek evening, encouraging visitor overnights beyond the normal weekend stay.
- The Food Truck Fight event is sure to be a crowd pleaser, infused with local food vendors. This successful event is estimated to 
draw a big crowd of locals and visitors. Please reference the event coordinator’s more detailed submission.

Bonus: GCT will provide free shuttle service to accomodate visitors and locals alike during the timeframe of each event listed 
above. We will partner with the City as needed to supply signage for detour and parking routes.

Food Truck Fight: Farm-to-Table:

Page 37 of 108



Food Truck Fight® Event Proposal 
Galena, IL, June 6, 2020 

Who: BRB LIVE, LLC is an event production company based out of Bettendorf, IA. This event production 

company is owned and operated by Bobby Ray 

Bunch, with the help of his wife Jacquelyn, has 

produced (3) Food Truck Fight® events in Le 

Claire, IA, and (1) franchised event in Aurora, 

CO.  

What: Food Truck Fight® is a family-friendly 

food truck competition founded in 2017. The 

inaugural event brought over 4,000 people to Le 

Claire, while the following years saw an increase in attendance to 5,500 in 2018 and 8,000+ in 2019. This 

event caters to families and we provide bounce houses, face painters, stilt walkers and more. In addition 

to the kid-friendly entertainment, we provide live music all day. This is a People’s Choice Award and the 

votes are counted at 6pm, with the winner being announced at 7pm. Admission is just $5 and kids 12 & 

under are free. Each truck is required to offer a $2 sample item. 

Food Truck Fight® is aiming for 20+ food trucks in 2020 along with a few food related vendors. We will 

also sell soda, water, canned beer and ciders to anyone ages 21+. The liquor license in 2020 will be held 

by a local non-profit that we will partner with 

and donate a portion of proceeds, 

along with another local organization. In the 

past, Food Truck Fight® has donated thousands 

of dollars to Le Claire Parks & Rec, Le Claire PD, 

Le Claire FD and Iowa Mission of Mercy.  

Page 38 of 108



Food Truck Fight® Event Proposal 
Galena, IL, June 6, 2020 

When: This would be a one-day event taking place Saturday, June 6th, 2020. Ideally, we would have 

access to Depot Park on Friday, June 5th, 2020 until Sunday, June 7th, 2020 for set-up, the event and the 

clean-up. The event will be in partnership with Galena Country Tourism but operated by BRB LIVE, LLC 

and their volunteers. This is a rain or shine event. In case of severe weather, we will use the PA on stage 

and volunteers to evacuate the area and to seek shelter.  

Where: The proposed event would take place at Depot Park in Downtown Galena, IL. Due to the 

potential size of this event, we would not be able to utilize any space at the park for on-site parking. The 

Parking Plan would involve street parking as well as a proposed off-site plan with a shuttle. The goal for 

this event is to bring 5000+ people to Downtown Galena.  

Why?: Galena, IL, is a desirable new location for Food Truck Fight® based on being a popular tourist 

destination, having a beautiful downtown as a backdrop and being a unique event, unlike anything in a 

90 min. radius.  

 Le Claire, Iowa’s population triples when Food Truck Fight® comes to town which, in turn,

increases revenue for the small businesses in town. Several shops and restaurants report record

revenue on this day and the Chief of Police claims it is the “safest and most well organized event

Le Claire has”.

 This event will increase awareness of everything Galena, IL, has to offer. Once the attendees

have paid admission, they are free to come and go as they please. Typically, an attendee will

enter the event and then leave to “cool off” and shop around town, then eventually make their

way back to the event.

 This event attracts visitors from a 60 mi. radius of Le Claire, IA, with minimal advertising. Our

plan is to create and execute a marketing strategy in conjunction with Galena Country Tourism.

We have three years of data to apply to 2020’s marketing campaign and will reach hundreds of

thousands of people through social media, appearances on Paula Sands Live (KWQC), Living

Local (WHBF) and WQAD. I will also be hosting a bi-monthly radio show on WOC 1420 which I

will use for promotion. We will also lean Galena Country Tourism's large network to spread the

word.

Page 39 of 108



Food Truck Fight® Le Claire Logistics: 

 30’ x 20’ x 3’ stage for live music and awards announcements

 Tents for shade, tents for beverage sales and tents for volunteer shade

 Tables and chairs (mostly under tents) for seating and gathering

 20+ food trucks will be the goal for Food Truck Fight® Galena

 12+ port-a-potties with hand washing stations

 Cold storage truck for the food trucks to utilize as well as storing beverages

 Ice trailer for the beverage tent

 (2) Mobile ATM’s (cash only at the gate and beverage tent)

 Space for Sponsor setup/promotion

 Perimeter fencing

 Proper signage for entry, voting and beverage tents

 (4) Police Officers worked the 2019 Le Claire event

 100+ volunteers

 40 yd. dumpster on-site – 20+ trash receptacles and 20+ recycling containers

 (2) Bounce houses/obstacle

 Dedicated voting area

 Set up takes place the day before and the morning of the event

 Clean up takes place immediately after the event and the following day. In the past, items like

the dumpster, ice trailer, port-a-potties and stage were picked up the following day or 1-2 days

after the event.

 Admission is $5 at the gate or sold in advance on Eventbrite.com. VIP tickets are $25 and only

sold in advance (capped at 500) VIP Tickets include free sample tickets, free beverage tickets,

one hour early entry and a Food Truck Fight® swag item.

Page 40 of 108



Testimonials: 

 “As the owner of Crane & Pelican, I didn’t know what to expect for my restaurant the first year of

Food Truck Fight® but this event brings so many people to town that they treat it as an all-day

experience to shop, dine and enjoy the food trucks.” – Mandy Harvey; Owner/Operator Crane &

Pelican, Le Claire, IA.

 “Bob helped our nonprofit put on our first large-scale fundraiser, Food Truck Fight®. He went

above and beyond what we asked him to do. He was detailed, attentive, and always there when

we needed him or had questions. He knows the "ins" and "outs" of holding events and we would

have been lost without him. I HIGHLY recommend Bob!” – Molli Barker; Executive Director,

Juvenile Assessment Center, Aurora, CO.

Summary: 

BRB LIVE, LLC and Galena Country Tourism agree that Galena, IL, is the perfect new location for Food 

Truck Fight®. If we are able to make this beautiful city the new home of the event, we would want to 

keep it unique to Galena, therefore, not do any other Food Truck Fight® events within a 70 mile radius 

(Le Claire, IA is ~ 70 miles away). We would work with Galena Country Tourism side-by-side to ensure 

we are planning this event to its full potential. Galena Country Tourism has a very large following, the 

City of Galena is a destination town and together they set the bar for tourism. Food Truck Fight® has a 

goal to create a unique, fun and family-friendly environment to showcase food trucks, the talented 

chefs behind the wheel and to have a friendly competition along the way. We have always donated a 

portion of proceeds to non-profits, city departments and fundraisers. This event has a positive impact 

on the economy of Le Claire, its tourism and its residents. We would like to emulate that in Galena and 

bring thousands of people to town to eat, drink and stay. We hope to produce this event on a year-to-

year basis and work with the city and Galena Country Tourism as the event grows.  

Page 41 of 108



Page 42 of 108



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 19, 2019 

RE:    2020 Capital Improvement Plan   
 
 
I am presenting for your review the proposed Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for fiscal years 
2021‐25.  The plan includes proposed departmental projects and purchases exceeding $10,000 
over the next five years.  More than 160 projects totaling $8.3 million were submitted.  
 
While the plan attempts to be realistic about available funding, completing the projects and 
funding the purchases would be subject to the availability of funding as determined during the 
annual budget process. 
 
I suggest that you take time to review the CIP so we could begin discussions about the plan at 
Monday’s meeting.  I am hopeful that you would approve the plan, with any changes that you 
identify, no later than the January 13 meeting.  The CIP is a very important component of the 
budget preparation process that will begin in January. 
 
I understand that reviewing the CIP on an iPad is challenging. If you would like a paper copy of 
the plan, please let me know.   
 
I look forward to your discussion about the CIP.  Please let me know if you have any questions.   
  

 

 

Page 43 of 108



 

 
     

 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 
 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Fiscal Years 2021 – 2025   

 

“Planned expenditures for systematically 
constructing, maintaining, upgrading and 
replacing the community’s physical 
plant”   

 
 

DRAFT 1 
December 23, 2019 

 
Mayor Terry Renner 

 
Alderpersons: 

 
 Chris Allendorf 
Pam Bernstein 
  Robert Hahn 
Jerry Kieffer 
Marc McCoy 

Jerry Westemeier 
 

 

City Administrator, Mark Moran 

Page 44 of 108



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  Reference  Page 

 
The Capital Improvement Plan   

   
1 

 
A Capital Improvement Defined   

   
1 

 
Developing the Galena CIP   

   
2 

 
Individual Project Descriptions   

 
A 

 
7 

 
Evaluation of Projects Using Criteria   

 
B 

 
23 

 
Recommended Capital Improvement Plan   

 
C 

 
25 

 
 

   

APPENDICIES     

 
Appendix A.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program   

 
APX. A 

 
27 

 
Appendix A1.  5‐Year Street Improvement Program Maps   

 
APX. A1 

 
28 

 
Appendix A2.  5‐Year Alley Improvement Plan  

 
APX. A2 

 
33 

 
Appendix B.  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Street Program (Completed Projects)   

 
APX. B 

 
34 

 
Appendix C:  Non‐Home Rule Sales Tax (1/2%) Projected Fund Balance    

 
APX. C 

 
35 

 
Appendix D.  Public Works Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. D 

 
36 

 
Appendix E.  Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan  

 
APX. E 

 
37 

 
Appendix F.  Police Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. F 

 
38 

 
Appendix G.  Water and Sewer Department Rolling Stock Plan   

 
APX. G 

 
39 

 
Appendix H.  Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. H 

 
40 

 
Appendix I.  Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan 

 
APX. I 

 
41 

Page 45 of 108



THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
A capital improvement plan (CIP) is a multi‐year schedule of municipal improvements.  The schedule usually 

covers a period of five or six years but may extend to 10 years and beyond.  The Galena CIP spans a five‐year 

period  beginning May  1,  2020  (Fiscal  Year  2012‐21).    This  plan  sets  forth  the  proposed  expenditures  for 

systematically  constructing,  maintaining,  upgrading  and  replacing  the  community’s  physical  plant  or 

infrastructure,  and  includes  vehicles  and  other  mobile  equipment.    Capital  improvement  projects  are 

typically major, infrequent expenditures, such as the construction of a new facility or rehabilitation or major 

repair of an existing facility.  With the relatively small size of our community and budget, this CIP recognizes a 

project as small as $10,000 as a capital project.    Individual projects  from the adopted plan should become 

part of the capital budget for their respective departments.   

 

In order  to be useful as a  tool  for budgeting and sound  financial management,  the plan must be updated 

annually by reviewing existing projects, proposing new projects and extending the program by an additional 

year.   This process should also consider the short  term and  long‐term effects of  the expenditures and any 

associated debt on fund balances and cash flow for operations.  The CIP is considered essential for managing 

and coordinating the efficient expenditure of Galena’s public resources. 

  
A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DEFINED 
 
A capital improvement project is defined as a major expenditure that includes one or more of the following: 

 
1. Any acquisition of land for a public purpose; 
 
2. Any construction of a new facility (e.g., a public building, water lines, pavilion etc…) or an addition to, 

or extension of, such a facility; 
 
3. A  rehabilitation  (i.e.,  something which  is  infrequent  and would not  be  considered  annual  or  other 

recurrent maintenance) or major repair of all or a part of a building,  its grounds, or a facility, or of 
equipment, provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and the improvement will have a useful life of 
10 years or more; 

 
4. Purchase or major equipment (i.e., items with a cost – individually or in total – of $10,000 or more), 

which have a useful life of five years or more, including vehicles (rolling stock) if part of a systematic 
replacement plan; 

 
5. Any  planning,  feasibility,  engineering,  or  capital  design  study  related  to  an  individual  capital 

improvement project or  to a program that  is  implemented through  individual capital  improvement 
projects. 

Page 46 of 108



 
 
DEVELOPING THE GALENA CIP 
 
The necessity of a CIP was identified in 1991 as a recommendation of the Galena Comprehensive Plan.  The 

city’s  first  CIP  was  developed  in  1999  and  has  been  largely  implemented.    In  2003,  the  Galena 

Comprehensive Plan called for the update of the CIP and, in 2004 the city council identified the CIP update as 

one of the top priorities during the visioning and four‐year goal setting process.  The CIP was again updated 

in 2007 and each year since.   The staff and administration have made a commitment to updating the plan 

annually.    This  section  generally  describes  the  process  of  developing  the  2020  Galena  CIP  and  the 

components of the plan. 

 

Staff Involvement 

Developing  the  recommended  capital  improvement  plan was  a  lengthy,  multi‐step  process.    The  process 

began with each department head identifying the projects and major purchases that he or she would like to 

see completed over the next five years in his or her respective area(s) of responsibility.  Department heads 

also estimated the cost of each project or purchase, described the relationship to other projects and assigned 

the projects a priority rating.  More than 160 projects and purchases totaling $8.3 million were submitted for 

the  five‐year  period.    Each  project  is  described  in  a  narrative  and  the  estimated  cost  is  identified  in  the 

“Attachment A:  Individual Project Descriptions”. 

 

Evaluating Projects 

Two separate methods were utilized  to demonstrate  the  relative  importance of each project or purchase.  

First,  each project or purchase was  reviewed against  criterion  ranging  from health  and  safety  to  resource 

conservation.    Each  criterion  used  is  described  in  detail  in  Figure  1,  “Criteria  for  Evaluating  Capital 

Improvement  Requests”  on  the  next  page.    The  results  of  the  evaluation  are  shown  in  Attachment  B, 

“Evaluation  of  Projects  Using  Criteria”.    Second,  each  department  head  ranked  each  project  as  either  a 

“high”,  “medium”  or  “low”  priority.    Combined,  both methods  of  evaluation were  useful  for  showing  the 

relative importance or need of each project or purchase. 

Page 47 of 108



FIGURE 1.  CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REQUESTS 

 
The  following  criteria  were  used  to  evaluate  each  of  the  proposed  capital  improvement  projects  or 
purchases.    The  results  of  the  evaluation  are  shown  as  a matrix,  “Table  2.  Evaluation  of  Requests Using 
Criteria”. 
 

Risk to Public Safety or Health.  To protect against a clear and possibly immediate risk to public safety 
or public health. 

 

Deteriorated Facility.  An investment that deals with a deteriorated facility or piece of equipment. The 
action  taken may  be  either:  1)  reconstruction  or  extensive  rehabilitation  to  extend  its  useful  life  to 
avoid or to postpone replacing it with a new and costlier one; or 2) replacement of the facility or piece 
of equipment with a new one. 

 

Systematic Replacement.  An investment that replaces or upgrades a facility or piece of equipment as 
part of a systematic replacement program. This investment assumes the equipment will be replaced at 
approximately the same level of service. Some increase in size to allow for normal growth or increased 
demand is anticipated. 

 

Improvement of Operating Efficiency.  An investment that substantially and significantly improves the 
operating  efficiency  of  a  department.  Or  an  expenditure  that  has  a  very  favorable  return  on 
investment  with  a  promise  of  reducing  existing,  or  future,  increases  in  operating  expenses  (e.g., 
introduction of a new or improved technology).

 

Coordination.   1)  An  expenditure  that  is  necessary  to  insure  coordination with  another  CIP  project 
(e.g., scheduling a sewer project to coincide with a street reconstruction project so that the street is 
not dug up a year after  it  is completed); 2) A project  that  is necessary  to comply with requirements 
imposed by others  (e.g., a court order, a change  in  federal or state  law, an agreement with another 
governmental jurisdiction or agency); or 3) A project that meets established goals or objectives of the 
City Council and Mayor. 

 

Equitable Provision of Services, Facilities.  1) An investment that serves the special needs of a segment 
of  the community's population  identified by public policy as deserving of  special attention  (e.g.,  the 
handicapped,  the  elderly,  or  low‐  and  moderate‐income  persons);  or  2)  An  investment  that, 
considering  existing  services  or  facilities,  makes  equivalent  facilities  or  services  available  to 
neighborhoods or population groups that are now undeserved in comparison with residents generally.

 

Protection and Conservation of Resources.  1) A project that protects natural resources that are at risk 
of  being  reduced  in  amount  or  quality;  or  2)  A  project  that  protects  the  investment  in  existing 
infrastructure  against  excessive  demand  or  overload  that  threatens  the  capacity  or  useful  life  of  a 
facility or piece of equipment. 

 

New or Substantially Expanded Facility.  Construction, or acquisition, of a new facility (including land) 
or new equipment, or major expansion thereof, that provides a service, or a level of service, not now 
available. 

Page 48 of 108



Revenue Sources and Projections 

The Galena CIP is utilized for planning and budgeting purposes and not as a rigid purchasing plan nor project 

schedule.    Therefore,  while  the  plan  identifies  likely  revenue  sources,  it  does  not  contain  projections  of 

available revenue for implementation of the plan.  One exception is the Street Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

where a half percent sales tax is dedicated for streets and related infrastructure.  Detailed revenue/expense 

analysis is performed to insure the proposed projects may be accomplished with available revenue from the 

fund.  Sales tax funded projects and all the CIP’s prioritized projects should be evaluated for inclusion in the 

city’s operating budget each fiscal year.     

 

Abbreviations are used throughout the plan for both revenue sources and departments.  The abbreviations 

are shown in Figures 2 and 3 below. 

                                                 
          Figure 2.                                           Figure 3. 

                           Revenue Sources Abbreviations                                       Department Abbreviations 
 

Revenue Source  Abbreviation Department Abbreviation

General Fund Cash  GF Public Works DPW
General Fund Financing  GFF Engineering  ENG
Motor Fuel Tax  MFT Turner Hall TH
Flood Control Cash  FC Administration ADM
Water Enterprise Cash  WTC Flood Control  FLD
Water Enterprise Financing  WTF Water  WAT
Sewer Enterprise Cash  SWC Sewer SEW
Sewer Enterprise Financing  SWF Parks PAR
Fire Department Cash  FD Police POL
Grants  GT Fire FD
    Swimming Pool SP

 
Recommended Plan  

After  identifying  all  the  potential  capital  projects  and  purchases,  describing  them  in  detail  and  evaluating 

their  importance,  the  final  plan was developed.    The plan  is  presented  as “Attachment C:  Recommended 

Capital Improvement Plan”.   The plan was recommended to the Mayor and City Council at the city council 

meeting of December 23, 2019 and approved __________.  Again, the projects and purchases from the final 

plan should be incorporated into the annual operating budget as revenues permit.   

 

Page 49 of 108



Summary 

The  importance of  implementing and updating  the Capital  Improvement Plan cannot be over‐emphasized.  

Using the same process described herein, the Capital Improvement Plan will continue to be updated annually 

to span a full five‐year period.   New capital  improvement requests will be submitted by department heads 

for  evaluation  and  inclusion  in  the  updated  plan.    With  guidance  from  the  Fund  Balance  Policy,  the 

Comprehensive Plan, and constituents, elected officials will decide which projects and purchases  from the 

recommended Capital Improvement Plan will be included in the annual budget.  

 

Page 50 of 108



CIP PROPOSAL DESCRIPTIONS AND JUSTIFICATIONS OVERVIEW 
 
In the following section, every CIP project that has been proposed by the various departments of the City is 
described in detail.  Criteria, including the recommendations of the Galena Comprehensive Plan are applied 
to assess whether a particular project is justified.  Each project is defined in the following format:    
 

Project Title:       Name of the project as used throughout the CIP. 
 
Department:      Name of the department that proposed the project. 
 
Date Submitted:  The date the project was proposed. (Nearly all the projects in this first year of 

the plan were also proposed this year.)   
 
Project Priority:  The priority of the project relative to other projects within the department. 
 
Project Description:    Description of the project. 
 
CIP Evaluation Criteria:   A list of the applicable criterion from the following page, Figure 1, “Evaluation 

Criteria for Capital Budget Requests”.  The criteria are used to evaluate the 
importance of the project relative to other projects.       
  

Comprehensive Plan:  A statement of whether or not the project can be directly justified by the 
Galena Comprehensive Plan and, if so, a page number and an excerpt from the 
plan. 

 
Multi‐year:  Identification of whether the project will take more than one year to complete. 
 
Coordination:  Identification of whether the project is dependent on one or more other CIP 

projects and, if so, a description of the related project(s). 
 
Cost Estimate:      The estimated cost of the project. 
 
Basis of Cost Estimate:   Identification of how the cost estimate was derived. 
 
Funding Source:  Identification of the proposed funding for the project.  Possible funding sources 

include, but are not limited to:  
 

 General Fund Reserves  Water Enterprise Cash 

 General Fund Financing  Water Enterprise Financing 

 Motor Fuel Tax   Sewer Enterprise Reserves 

 Flood Control Cash   Sewer Enterprise Financing 

 Capital Projects Fund Reserves   Grants 

 Capital Projects Fund Financing  Donations
  

Page 51 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

PUBLIC WORKS  

Project Title:

Department: Public Works/Engineering 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Equity Provision, Coordination, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan: P. 108 "Budget for road improvements through the CIP process."

Multi‐Year: No

Coordination: Yes.  Projects are scheduled to coincide with underground utility work as much as possible.  

Cost Estimate: $2,151,795

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimates based on measured quantities and prices from recent projects

Funding Source: Capital Projects Fund (Sales Tax Fund)

 

Project Title: Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: December 2008

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $220,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate

Funding Source: Revolving Loan Fund Grant from Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, General Fund

Project Title: Street crack sealing and street repairs

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement  

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination:

Cost Estimate: $125,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:

Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: January 2016

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No  

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $45,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Replace approach structure on Meeker St pedestrian bridge

Replace deteriorated elevated concrete walkway that spans about 20 feet on the west end of the bridge and the same on the east end.

Replace deteriorated concrete sidewalks and crosswalks in the downtown.   The replacement plan is based on the study and 

recommendations by MSA Professional Services.    

5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A)

ATTACHMENT A. INDIVIDUAL PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS (FY 2021‐2025)

Includes all street improvement work planned for the five‐year plan period.  Projects to completed with the non‐home rule sales tax 

revenues are listed in the 5‐Year Street Improvement Plan and detailed in Appendix A.  

Annual project to fill cracks in street pavement.  Also, an allotment for miscellaneous repairs to streets and curb and gutter. 

No.   

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A1

Page 52 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:

Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No  

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $80,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary quote from contractor

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: January 2011

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $53,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contract award

Funding Source: Grant Funding

Project Title:

Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: January 2017

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No  

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $60,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate

Funding Source: Parking Fund

Project Title:

Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No  

Coordination: Yes. Coordinate light pole painting with painting of US 20 bridge railing

Cost Estimate: $12,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: General Fund

Add perpendicular parking on the east side of the entry road to the pool.  Parking would start in front of the Public Works building and 

extend to the area across from the playground.  Widen entrance from Field Street to improve traffic flow.

Additional parking at Recreation Park

Complete specialty repairs to the underside of the concrete deck of the bridge. Seal top of deck.  

Repairs to Kohlsaat Bridge deck

Depot exterior maintenance 

Painting cupola and facia, spot tuckpointing on west side, installation of ceilings on porch, painting parking lot lights.

Commerce Street parking lot design and reconstruction

Resurfacing of the City parking lot between Commerce Street and Water Street.  The project should include reshaping the lot to integrate 

Washington Street into the lot so all of the spaces would be "pay to park" spaces.  Landscaping and lighting would also be considered.   

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A2

Page 53 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:

Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: December 2017

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No  

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $10,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title: Paint Highway 20 bridge railings

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: January 2017

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $12,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: December 2017

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $30,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: January 2015

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes.  Design, funding, and construction.

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $75,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate  

Funding Source: Motor Fuel Tax

Replace the bridge over Hughlett's Creek on Dewey Avenue.  The bridge has been inspected and found to be in poor condition.  The 

project will be coordinated by the County Engineer and paid for with a combination of federal, county and city funds.  

Remove loose parge on headwall at top of Green Street steps, repair wall as needed, and apply new parge.

Repair headwall at top of Green Street Steps

Replace Green Street steps from Main to Bench

The steel stairway from the Highway 20 Bridge to the Depot Parking lot was painted in 2016.  The proposed project would be to paint all 

of the steel railings on the US 20 bridge black to match the light poles.  

Replace the concrete steps and railings from Main Street to Bench Street on Green Street.  The current steps have been repeatedly 

repaired and are continuing to deteriorate.

Dewey Avenue bridge replacement

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A3

Page 54 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone

Department: Public Works 

Date Submitted: January 2015

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New, Expanded Facility, Health Safety

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Could be completed in phases

Coordination: No   

Cost Estimate: $47,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title: Annual sidewalk/steps replacement program

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: January 1999

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Public Safety, Equitable Provision of Facilities, New Facilities

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes 

Coordination: Yes.  Initiate program after study/inventory is complete.

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Completed inventory of one ward.

Funding Source: General Fund 

Project Title: Seal concrete floor in Public Works Building

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: December  2018

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility 

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No.

Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with coating floors in the swimming pool building. 

Cost Estimate: $30,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contractor estimate 

Funding Source: General Fund 

Project Title:

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: December 2017

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $125,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate  

Funding Source: General Fund, Grant

Replace the concrete steps and railings from Third Street to Fourth Street on Madison Street (East Side).  The current steps have been 

repeatedly repaired and are continuing to deteriorate.

Systematic replacement of deteriorated sidewalks and public stairways throughout the community.  The replacement schedule should be 

based on the results of the comprehensive inventory, condition assessment and prioritization.

P. 112 "Investigate the rehabilitation of sidewalks under the CIP process.  This could include a discussion of possible financing mechanisms 

such as cost sharing or use of the assessment process."

Replace Madison Street steps from Third to Fourth Street

Construction of five feet wide sidewalk from the  intersection of U.S. Highway 20 and Oldenburg Lane to the beginning of Cobblestone 

Boulevard.  The proposed sidewalk will link the bike path along U.S. Highway 20 to the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision.

Install epoxy floor covering in garages to remedy spalling concrete and protect the in‐floor heating system. 

No direct reference

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A4

Page 55 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Wayfinding signage project

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: January 2017

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated facility, Public Safety, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with highway and street projects.

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:

Department: Public Works

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes 

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $859,300

Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost of vehicles plus inflation factor 

Funding Source: General Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Flood Control

ENGINEERING

Project Title:

Department: Engineering

Date Submitted: January 2017

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, New Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $10,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's estimate 

Funding Source: Grant

FLOOD CONTROL

Project Title:

Department: Flood Control

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Deteriorated Facility, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: No 

Cost Estimate: $31,800  

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contract cost

Funding Source: Flood Control Fund

Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan

50% share of cost of trading‐in the Public Works end loader every other year.  

Battery storage for City Hall solar 

Systematic replacement of public works vehicles and equipment.

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix D)

Installation of a battery pack on the interior of City Hall.  The battery would store surplus power generated from the rooftop solar array.  

The stored power would be used when the solar array is not producing power.  This project should use grant funding.   

Project to improve wayfinding from the highway down to the pedestrian level.  Project includes existing conditions assessment, systems 

strategy, design, and bidding performed by city staff.   It is anticipated that the sign fabrication and installation would be phased over 

multiple years. 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A5

Page 56 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

WATER

Project Title: East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main

Department: Water

Date Submitted: January 2016

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes

Cost Estimate: $1,400,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate from consulting engineer

Funding Source: Water Fund, EPA low‐interest loan with 60% of principal forgiven

Project Title: East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main

Department: Water

Date Submitted: January 2016

Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes

Cost Estimate: $200,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate from consulting engineer

Funding Source: Water Fund, EPA low‐interest loan with 60% of principal forgiven

Project Title: West side water system improvements

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes.  Study began in 2018.  Project plan development in 2019.  Construction in 2022. 

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $1,300,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Consulting engineer's estimate

Funding Source: Water Fund, EPA low‐interest loan with 60% of principal forgiven

Project Title: Elm Street watermain addition

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Operating Efficiency, New Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes.  Possibly coordinate/include with the West Side water system improvement project.

Cost Estimate: $85,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate

Funding Source: Water Fund, EPA low‐interest loan with 60% of principal forgiven

Replace 2,525 feet of 6" and 4" water main with 10" water main in order to resolve a low pressure issue at the north end of Park Avenue 

on the east side of the river.  The project is more fully described on page 5‐1 of the 2015 Water System Study Report prepared by IIW 

Engineers and Surveyors.  For the purposes of the CIP, this project also includes the installation of new water main on Fifth Street from 

Madison Street to Louieville Court. 

Replace 720 feet of 4" water main with 6" water main under US Highway 20 between Park Avenue and Fourth Street.  Also, replace 360 

Installation of water main on Elm Street between Fulton Street and Council Fire Circle. The main will provide a redundant supply to the 

Indian Ridge Subdivision. 

No direct reference.

Removal of the Franklin Street water tower and distribution system upgrades to address both high and low pressure issues on the west 

side of the river.  The project will provide more redundancy and security to the water supply.

No direct reference.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A6

Page 57 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Tower, reservoir and standpipe inspection and maintenance

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Operating Efficiency 

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes.  Standpipe recoating would likely occur the year after the inspection.

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $115,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate

Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Hydrant and valve replacement

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $30,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate

Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Well #6 Upgrade

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation, New Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes.  Inspection, design then construction. 

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $340,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate from supplier

Funding Source: Water Fund, possibly a low‐interest forgivable loan from the Illinois EPA

Project Title: South Street watermain replacement

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes

Cost Estimate: $128,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Street Sales Tax 

Replacement of old watermain in South Street.  Construction should be undertaken before the planned paving of the street in 2020.

No direct reference.

Inspection of interior of Horseshoe mound reservoir and interior and exterior of Dodge Street stand pipe.  Repair as needed.  Recoat 

Dodge Street stand pipe.  Clean exterior of Industrial Park tower.  Schedule all water storage facilities for regular inspection thereafter.

No direct reference.

Replace hydrants and valves that are no longer operating properly.  

No direct reference.

Inspect well. Lower the pump in Well #6 and replace the current shaft driven pump with a submersible pump as used in our other wells.  

Replace old well house with new well house. 

No direct reference.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A7

Page 58 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: High Street watermain replacement

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with street paving.

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Water Fund or possibility the Street Sales Tax 

Project Title: Dodge Street watermain replacement

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with street paving.

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Water Fund or possibility the Street Sales Tax 

Project Title: Wann Street watermain replacement

Department: Water 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Health Safety, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $120,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Water Fund or possibility the Street Sales Tax 

Project Title: East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station

Department: Water

Date Submitted: January 2016

Project Priority: Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes

Cost Estimate: $200,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer

Funding Source: Water Fund

Install 900 feet of 6" water main and a 6" pressure reduction station between Bouthillier Street and US Highway 20 in the Fourth Street 

right‐of‐way.  The improvement is to address a fire flow deficiency in the area of the improvement.  The project is more fully described on 

page 5‐1 of the 2015 Water System Study Report prepared by IIW Engineers and Surveyors.

Replacement of old watermain in High Street between Gear Street and South Street.  Construction should be undertaken before the 

planned paving of the street in 2024.

No direct reference.

Replacement of old watermain in Dodge Street between Gear Street and South Street.  Construction should be undertaken before the 

planned paving of the street in 2024.

No direct reference.

Replacement of old watermain in Wann Street from Field Street to the north end.   

No direct reference.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A8

Page 59 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house

Department: Water

Date Submitted: October 2004

Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Health Safety, Equitable Provision of Services 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes

Cost Estimate: $1,635,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: 2015 estimate from consulting engineer

Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Well #5 and #7 Inspection and repair

Department: Water

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $20,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate from contractor

Funding Source: Water Fund

Project Title: Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan (See Appendix G)

Department: Water and Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facilities, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: Yes.  Coordinate with Public Works Rolling Stock Plan

Cost Estimate: $165,300

Basis of Cost Estimate: Current cost plus inflation factor

Funding Source: Water and Sewer Funds

SEWER

Project Title:

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, Systematic Replacement, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $38,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Construct a new well and pump house on the east side of the Galena River adjacent to the Horseshoe Mound reservoir to provide a 

Systematic replacement of water and sewer vehicles and rolling equipment.

East side sewer crossing repair

Replace damaged sewer main under the east side levee just south of the Meeker Street pedestrian bridge and south toward Grant Park.  

Inspect wells on a regular basis to identify preventative maintenance measures. Include Well #6 after upgrade completed.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A9

Page 60 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $10,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contractor estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title:

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $60,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title:

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $25,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: South Street sewer main replacement

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes. Coordinate with water main replacement and resurfacing of South Street in 2024.

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Replace the original 2001 furnace in the administration building at the wastewater treatment plant with a more efficient model.  The 

furnace is at the end of its life.   

Polymer addition replacement at treatment plant

Replace heating system at treatment plant administration building

Replace air nozzles in treatment plant digestors

Replace the original air nozzles from 2001 in the digesters at the wastewater treatment plant.  The nozzles introduce oxygenated bubbles  

into the final liquid stage of the sewerage treatment process. 

Replace the mechanism that feeds polymer into the belt filter press where the sewerage is dewatered for land application as sludge.  The 

polymer feed is original equipment at the 2001 wastewater treatment plant.   

Replace sewer main between West Street and Bench Street. 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A10

Page 61 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Phosphorus removal study

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $10,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Industrial Park lift station generator 

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Public Health and Safety, Operating Efficiency, New Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Inflow and infiltration study

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: January 2010

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes, implement recommendations in future year(s)

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $10,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement

Department: Sewer Fund

October 2004

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency, Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $130,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Professional study to determine points of inflow and infiltration of water into the sewer system.   Reducing inflow and infiltration can 

Conduct professional study to examine options for phosphorus removal at the wastewater treatment plant.  Monitor EPA rule making to 

assess possible changes in requirements for phosphorus removal.

Install permanent generator for back‐up power at the Industrial Park lift station. This is the only west‐end lift station without back‐up 

Replace or reline sewer main in the Hughlett Creek valley below Dewey Avenue and near the pumping station at the old treatment plant 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A11

Page 62 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Influent pump replacement at treatment plant

Department: Sewer Fund

December 2019

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $100,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate 

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Lift station pump replacement Meeker Street lift station

Department: Sewer Fund

December 2019

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $50,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar project

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Project Title: Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension 

Department: Sewer

Date Submitted: October 2004

Project Priority: Low

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: New Facility, Equitable Provision of Services, Health Safety

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $220,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Similar projects

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

PUBLIC SAFETY

Project Title:

Department: Police 

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $15,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contractor estimate

Funding Source: General Fund

Upgrade electric system on the lower level of the building to bring the system up to the current code. The lower level electric was not 

included in the 2015 building remodel.

P. 113  "Where feasible, connect all residences not currently served with sanitary sewer and water to the City's system to protect the 

public health and safety of the community and the City's water supply."

Install sanitary sewer main in the area of Madison Street and Fifth Street to convert eight homes from septic to public sewer.  This is the 

Police Department electrical system upgrade

No direct reference.

There are three pumps at the Meeker Street lift station at the old treatment plant site.  One pump was replaced in 2019.  The two other 

pumps will likely need to be replaced in the near future.  The estimated cost is for two pumps.

Replace two main influent pumps that move sewerage from the conveyance system into the treatment plant. The pumps are original from 

2001. Explore the possibility of replacing one pump and the other at a later date.  The estimated project cost is for two pumps.

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A12

Page 63 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:

Department: Police 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $16,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate from vendor

Funding Source: General Fund

Project Title:

Department: Police 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $132,650

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate based on current costs of new vehicles plus inflation factor

Funding Source: General Fund/Court Fines

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Project Title: Replace bunker gear

Department: Fire

Date Submitted: January 2015

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No   

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $150,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate

Funding Source: Fire Fund

Project Title:

Department: Fire

Date Submitted: January 2015

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Health Safety

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No   

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $150,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Estimate

Funding Source: Fire Fund

Replace self contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) for all fire fighters.

Police Rolling Stock Plan

Replace outer protective clothing for all fire fighters.  

Purchase storm window inserts for the interior of the Police Department.  The windows are designed to fit inside the jambs and sill to 

provide energy efficient 

No direct reference.

P. 115 "Identify grant funding and other outside sources that will aid in purchasing capital equipment and the construction of new 

facilities, if they are determined to be necessary."

Systematic plan to replace squad cars in the Police Department.   Replacement plan should be based on operating cost per mile, disruption 

to operations resulting from repairs and safety of the vehicles.

Replace SCBA gear

Police Department storm windows

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A13

Page 64 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Training center classroom building

Department: Fire

Date Submitted: January 2015

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Operating Efficiency, New Facility, Health Safety 

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference

Multi‐year: No   

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $960,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Architect's Estimate

Funding Source: Fire Fund, not‐for‐profit Volunteer Fire Department 

Project Title: Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan

Department: Fire 

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Operating Efficiency

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $150,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Review of current costs plus inflation

Funding Source: Fire Fund, borrowing

PARKS AND RECREATION

Project Title: Grant Park Restoration

Department: Parks

Date Submitted: December 2017

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan: No direct reference 

Multi‐year: No  

Coordination: No  

Cost Estimate: $20,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Preliminary estimate

Funding Source: Park Fund 

Project Title: Skatepark ramp painting 

Department: Parks

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $25,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contractor quote

Funding Source: Parks Fund

Completion of the Grant Park restoration plan. Includes tree planting, pedestrian bridge access improvements, directional/interpretive 

signs and repair of the gazebo. 

Begin construction of new multi‐purpose classroom building with vehicle bay.  Building to be located on the property of the training center 

in the Industrial Park.    

P. 115 "Develop a long term capital equipment and staffing plan for the Police and Fire Departments, based on population, tourism and 

Systematic replacement of fire vehicles. (See Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan)

Priming and painting of ramp surfaces with manufacturer recommended paint. Ramps have not been painted since installed in 2003.

No direct reference

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A14

Page 65 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title: Canoe and kayak launch

Department: Parks

Date Submitted: January 2015

Project Priority: High

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Expanded Facility, Resource Conservation

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: No

Coordination: Yes.  Water main replacement has been completed in the area of the parking lot.

Cost Estimate: $127,500

Basis of Cost Estimate: Contract amount

Funding Source: DNR grant funds, Community Development Fund of Galena grant

Project Title: Ridge Street park playground replacement

Department: Parks

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $25,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of similar projects

Funding Source: Grant from the Galena Kiwanis

Project Title: Bouthillier Street park playground replacement

Department: Parks

Date Submitted: December 2018

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $40,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Cost of similar projects

Funding Source: Parks Fund 

Project Title: Replace lighting at Rec Park ball field 

Department: Parks

Date Submitted: December 2017

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:
CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility

Comprehensive Plan:
Multi‐year: No

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $80,000

Basis of Cost Estimate: Engineer's Estimate

Funding Source: Park Fund

Construction of a canoe, kayak launch and park south of the U.S. Highway 20 bridge and east of the Gazette parking lot.  The project is 

expected to be completely grant funded.   

No direct reference

Replace all playground equipment in the park with current, code compliant equipment.  

Replace lighting on poles above Rec Park ball field.  Add lighting to allow sand volleyball courts to be used at night.

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital Improvement 

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital Improvement 

Replace all playground equipment in the park with current, code compliant equipment.  

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital Improvement 

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A15

Page 66 of 108



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2020-2024)
Individual Project Descriptions

Project Title:

Department: Pool

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: High, Medium, Low

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Systematic Replacement, Health Safety, Deteriorated Facility, Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year: Yes

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $261,500

Basis of Cost Estimate: Quotes and estimates

Funding Source: Pool Fund 

TURNER HALL

Project Title: Turner Hall maintenance and improvements

Department: Turner Hall

Date Submitted: December 2019

Project Priority: Medium

Project Description:

CIP Evaluation Criteria: Resource Conservation, Operating Efficiency, Deteriorated Facility, Systematic Replacement, Expanded Facility

Comprehensive Plan:

Multi‐year:

Coordination: No

Cost Estimate: $319,500

Basis of Cost Estimate: Quotes and estimates 

Funding Source: Turner Hall Fund, General Fund, grants

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 

Appendix H, "Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan."

Swimming pool maintenance and improvements

Yes 
P. 121 "Continue to better utilize Turner Hall."

Numerous maintenance and improvement projects implemented over a multi‐year period.  The projects are more fully described in 

Appendix I, "Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan."   

P. 119 "Develop a comprehensive maintenance program for the parks.  This program should be part of the regular Capital Improvement 

Plan."

New Projects are Indicated by a Shaded Project Title 

 Individual Project Descriptions
Page A16

Page 67 of 108



ATTACHMENT B. EVALUATION OF PROJECTS USING CRITERIA  (FY 2021‐2025) 

Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 

Dept. Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) X X X X X

DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement X X X

DPW Street crack sealing and street repairs X X

DPW Replace approach structure on Meeker St pedestrian bridge X X X

DPW Repairs to Kohlsaat Bridge deck X X X

DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park X

DPW Commerce Street parking lot design and reconstruction X X

DPW Depot exterior maintenance  X X

DPW Repair headwall at top of Green Street Steps X

DPW Paint Highway 20 bridge railings X

DPW Replace Green Street steps from Main to Bench X X

DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement X X X

DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone X X

DPW Annual sidewalk/steps replacement program X X X X

DPW Seal concrete floor in Public Works Building X

DPW Replace Madison Street steps from Third to Fourth Street X X X

DPW Wayfinding signage project X X X

DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Engineering/Administration

ENG Battery storage for City Hall solar  X X X

Flood Control

FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Water

WAT East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main X X X

WAT East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main X X X

WAT West side water system improvements X X X

WAT Elm Street watermain addition X X X

WAT Tower, reservoir and standpipe inspection and maintenance X X X

WAT Hydrant and valve replacement X X X X X

WAT Well #6 Upgrade X X X X

WAT South Street watermain replacement X X X X X

WAT High Street watermain replacement X X X X X

WAT Dodge Street watermain replacement X X X X X

WAT Wann Street watermain replacement X X X X X

WAT East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station X X X

WAT East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house X X X

WAT Well #5 and #7 Inspection and repair X X X

WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan X X X

Criterion

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 1

Page 68 of 108



Health/Safety Systematic Deteriorated Equitable Operating New/Expanded Resource 

Dept. Project Description Risk Replacement Facility Provision Efficiency Coordination Facility Conservation

Sewer

SEW East side sewer crossing repair

SEW Replace heating system at treatment plant administration building X X X X

SEW Replace air nozzles in treatment plant digestors X X

SEW Polymer addition replacement at treatment plant X X X

SEW South Street sewer main replacement X X X

SEW Phosphorus removal study X X X

SEW Industrial Park lift station generator  X X X

SEW Inflow and infiltration study X X

SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement/relining X X X

SEW Influent pump replacement at treatment plant X X

SEW Lift station pump replacement Meeker Street lift station X X

SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  X X X

SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Public Safety

POL Police Department electrical system upgrade X X X

POL Police Department storm windows X X

POL Police Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Fire

FD Replace bunker gear X X X

FD Replace SCBA gear X X X

FD Training center classroom building X X X

FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan X X X

 

Culture and Recreation

PAR Grant Park Restoration X X X

PAR Skatepark ramp painting  X X X

PAR Canoe and kayak launch X X

PAR Ridge Street park playground replacement X X X

PAR Bouthillier Street park playground replacement X X X

PAR Replace lighting at Rec Park ball field  X X X

SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements X X X X

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements X X X X X

CIP Evaluation Criteria
Page B 2

Page 69 of 108



ATTACHMENT C. RECOMMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2021‐2025)

Estimated Grant FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost Funding? High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Public Works
DPW 5‐Year Street Improvement Program (See Appendix A) 2,151,795$              X 372,550$                 533,345$               418,500$                   400,700$                   426,700$                  2,151,795$                
DPW Downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement 220,000$                  X X 120,000$                 50,000$                     50,000$                    220,000$                    
DPW Street crack sealing and street repairs 125,000$                  X 25,000$                   25,000$                  25,000$                     25000 25000 125,000$                    
DPW Replace approach structure on Meeker St pedestrian bridge 45,000$                    X 45,000$                  45,000$                      
DPW Repairs to Kohlsaat Bridge deck 80,000$                    X 80,000$                   80,000$                      
DPW Additional parking at Recreation Park 53,000$                    X X 53,000$                     53,000$                      
DPW Commerce Street parking lot design and reconstruction 60,000$                    X 60,000$                   60,000$                      
DPW Depot exterior maintenance  12,000$                    X 12,000$                   12,000$                      
DPW Repair headwall at top of Green Street Steps 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
DPW Paint Highway 20 bridge railings 12,000$                    X 12,000$                   12,000$                      
DPW Replace Green Street steps from Main to Bench 30,000$                    X 30,000$                     30,000$                      
DPW Dewey Avenue bridge replacement 75,000$                    X X 75,000$                  75,000$                      
DPW Sidewalk from US 20 to Cobblestone 50,000$                    X 50,000$                     50,000$                      
DPW Annual sidewalk/steps replacement program 50,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                  10,000$                     10,000$                     10,000$                    50,000$                      
DPW Seal concrete floor in Public Works Building 30,000$                    X 30,000$                     30,000$                      
DPW Replace Madison Street steps from Third to Fourth Street 125,000$                  X
DPW Wayfinding signage project 50,000$                    X 50,000$                    50,000$                      
DPW Public Works Rolling Stock Plan 859,300$                  X 186,300$                 184,750$               254,000$                   117,500$                   116,750$                  859,300$                    

TOTAL 4,038,095$              970,850$                923,095$               807,500$                  583,200$                   628,450$                  3,913,095$                

Engineering/Administration
ENG Battery storage for City Hall solar  10,000$                    X X 10,000$                   10,000$                      

TOTAL 10,000$                    10,000$                   ‐$                        ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           10,000$                      

Flood Control
FLD Flood Control Rolling Stock Plan 31,800$                    X 31,800$                   9,550$                    4,000$                       9,750$                        4,000$                       59,100$                      

TOTAL 31,800$                    31,800$                   9,550$                    4,000$                       9,750$                        4,000$                       59,100$                      
 

Water
WAT East Side Water System DSI‐Park Ave water main 1,400,000$              X X 1,700,000$             1,700,000$                
WAT East Side Water System DS2‐Highway 20 water main 200,000$                  X X 200,000$                   200,000$                    
WAT West side water system improvements 1,300,000$              X X 50,000$                   50,000$                  1,200,000$                 1,300,000$                
WAT Elm Street watermain addition 85,000$                    X 85,000$                     85,000$                      
WAT Tower, reservoir and standpipe inspection and maintenance 115,000$                  X 25,000$                   90,000$                  115,000$                    
WAT Hydrant and valve replacement 30,000$                    X 15,000$                  15,000$                     30,000$                      
WAT Well #6 Upgrade 340,000$                  X X 40,000$                  300,000$                   340,000$                    
WAT South Street watermain replacement 128,000$                  X   128,000$                   128,000$                    
WAT High Street watermain replacement 50,000$                    X 50,000$                     50,000$                      
WAT Dodge Street watermain replacement 50,000$                    X 50,000$                     50,000$                      
WAT Wann Street watermain replacement 120,000$                  X 120,000$                  120,000$                    
WAT East Side Water System DS3‐south pressure reduction station 200,000$                  X ‐$                            
WAT East Side Water System WS1‐new well and pump house 1,635,000$              X X   ‐$                            
WAT Well #5 and #7 Inspection and repair 20,000$                    X 20,000$                     20,000$                      
WAT Water Rolling Stock Plan 82,650$                    X 1,900$                     37,000$                  52,000$                     54,500$                     27,250$                    172,650$                    

TOTAL 4,155,650$              76,900$                   232,000$               1,637,000$               317,500$                   147,250$                  2,410,650$                

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C1 

Page 70 of 108



Estimated FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25 Total CIP 
Dept. Project Description Cost High Medium Low Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

Sewer
SEW East side sewer crossing repair 38,000$                    X 38,000$                   38,000$                      
SEW Replace heating system at treatment plant administration building 10,000$                    X 10,000$                   10,000$                      
SEW Replace air nozzles in treatment plant digestors 60,000$                    X 60,000$                   60,000$                      
SEW Polymer addition replacement at treatment plant 25,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
SEW South Street sewer main replacement 50,000$                    X 50,000$                     50,000$                      
SEW Phosphorus removal study 10,000$                    X 10,000$                  10,000$                      
SEW Industrial Park lift station generator  50,000$                    X 50,000$                     10,000$                      
SEW Inflow and infiltration study 10,000$                    X ‐$                            
SEW Hughlett Creek sewer main replacement/relining 130,000$                  X ‐$                            
SEW Influent pump replacement at treatment plant 100,000$                  X 50,000$                     50,000$                      
SEW Lift station pump replacement Meeker Street lift station 50,000$                    X 25,000$                  25,000$                      
SEW Madison and Fifth Street sewer main extension  220,000$                  X 220,000$                   220,000$                    
SEW Sewer Rolling Stock Plan 82,650$                    X 1,900$                     37,000$                  52,000$                     54,500$                     27,250$                    145,400$                    
  TOTAL 835,650$                 134,900$                72,000$                  152,000$                  324,500$                   27,250$                    710,650$                    

Public Safety
POL Police Department electrical system upgrade 15,000$                    X 15,000$                   15,000$                      
POL Police Department storm windows 16,000$                    X 16,000$                     16,000$                      
POL Police Rolling Stock Plan 132,650$                  X 25,000$                   25,750$                  26,500$                     27,300$                     28,100$                    132,650$                    
  TOTAL 163,650$                 40,000$                   25,750$                  42,500$                     27,300$                     28,100$                    163,650$                    

Fire
FD Replace bunker gear 150,000$                  X 150,000$                 150,000$                    
FD Replace SCBA gear 150,000$                  X   ‐$                            
FD Training center classroom building 960,000$                  X   ‐$                            
FD Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan 150,000$                  X ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                            
  TOTAL 1,410,000$              150,000$                ‐$                        ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           150,000$                    

Culture and Recreation
PAR Grant Park Restoration 20,000$                    X X 20,000$                   20,000$                      
PAR Skatepark ramp painting  25,000$                    X 25,000$                   25,000$                      
PAR Canoe and kayak launch 127,500$                  X X 127,500$                 127,500$                    
PAR Ridge Street park playground replacement 25,000$                    X X 25,000$                  25,000$                      
PAR Bouthillier Street park playground replacement 40,000$                    X 40,000$                     40,000$                      
PAR Replace lighting at Rec Park ball field  80,000$                    X 80,000$                     80,000$                      
SP Swimming pool maintenance and improvements 261,500$                  X X X 121,500$                 45,000$                  45,000$                     25,000$                     25,000$                    261,500$                    

TOTAL 579,000$                 294,000$                70,000$                  125,000$                  65,000$                     25,000$                    579,000$                    

TH Turner Hall maintenance and improvements 319,500$                  X X X X 74,500$                   75,000$                  100,000$                   25,000$                     45,000$                    319,500$                    
TOTAL 319,500$                 74,500$                   75,000$                  100,000$                  25,000$                     45,000$                    319,500$                    

TOTAL 11,511,545$            1,751,150$             1,397,845$            2,864,000$               1,342,500$                901,050$                  8,315,645$                

Priority

Recommended CIP
Page C2 

Page 71 of 108



FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25
Street Location Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

FY 20/21 (Year 1)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
West Street Highway 20 to Gear Street   132,600$                 
Hickory Street Highway 20 to Hill Street 108,400$                 
Clay Street Hickory Street to Division Street 7,300$                     
Alexander Street and Driscoll Street Complete Streets 48,900$                   
High Street Highway 20 to Gear Street 38,200$                   
Green Street  High Street to Dodge Street (joint replacement) 6,000$                     
Prospect Street Hill Street to Green Street (joint replacement) 10,000$                   

Blacktop Total 351,400$                 
Sales Tax Projects‐Sealcoat
Park Avenue  Belvedere Mansion to End 15,000$                   

 Seal Coat Total 15,000$                   
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing
No alley resurfacing planned ‐$                         

Alley Total ‐$                         

Sales Tax Projects Total 366,400$                 
Non‐Sales Tax‐Sealcoat
Parks Department parking lot Old wastewater plant 6,150$                     

Other Projects Total 6,150$                     

TOTAL FY 20/21 372,550$                 
FY 21/22 (Year 2)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Hill Street High Street to Prospect Street 18,700$                   
Elk Street High Street to North End (including High Street to Newer Pavement) 18,500$                   
West Street Ridge Street to Green Street (and Green Street to Dodge Street) 101,400$                 
Timp Subdivision Phase 1 Jupiter Court, Apollo Court, Argus Court, Saturn Lane, Domino Lane 182,800$                 
Fourth Street Boggess Street to End   53,200$                   
Madison Street Fourth Street to End 6,600$                     
Monroe Street Fourth Street to Fifth Street 15,000$                   

Blacktop Total 396,200$                  
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing
South of Hill Street Between High Street and Prospect Street (South of Hill Street) 5,000$                     

Alley Total 5,000$                      
Sales Tax Projects‐Sealcoat
No sealcoat projects planned 

Sealcoat Total ‐$                          
Other Blacktop Projects (Non‐Sales Tax)
Industrial Drive US Highway 20 to Technical Drive 53,345$                   
Technical Drive Chetlain Lane to Industrial Drive 78,800$                   

Other Projects Total 132,145$                 

TOTAL FY 21/22 533,345$                  
FY 22/23 (Year 3)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Hill Street Bridge Street to Elm Street 145,000$                  
High Street Highway 20 to Hill Street 120,700$                  
Division Street Hill Street to End 54,100$                     
Washington Street  Summit Street to High Street 98,700$                     

Blacktop Total 418,500$                   
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing
No alley resurfacing planned

Alley Total ‐$                            
Sales Tax Projects‐Sealcoat
No sealcoat projects planned   

Sealcoat Total ‐$                            

Sales Tax Projects Total 418,500$                   

TOTAL FY 22/23 418,500$                   
FY 23/24 (Year 4)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Fulton Street Elm Street to Division Street 85,900$                  
High Street South Street to Gear Street 21,500$                  
Dodge Street South Street to Gear Street 22,800$                  
South Street Prospect Street Cul‐de‐sac 4,500$                    
South Street West Street to Bench Street  98,000$                  
South Street Watermain Replacement 128,000$                
South Street Sewer Main Replacement 40,000$                  

Blacktop Total 400,700$                 
Sales Tax Projects‐Alley Resurfacing  
No alley resurfacing planned   ‐$                             

Alley Total ‐$                              
Sealcoat
No sealcoating planned ‐$                             

Sealcoat Total ‐$                              

Sales Tax Projects Total 400,700$                 
Other Blacktop Projects (Non‐Sales Tax)

Other Projects Total ‐$                              

TOTAL FY 23/24 400,700$                 

FY 24/25 (Year 5)

Sales Tax Projects‐Blacktop Overlay
Fifth Street 55,800$                         
Power House Hill Road Highway 20 to Boggess Street (Including Fifth Street) 213,800$                       
Summit Street Highway 20 to Ridge Street 98,300$                         
Campbell Street Hill Street to Driscoll Street 58,800$                         

Blacktop Total 426,700$                       
Alley Resurfacing
No alley resurfacing planned ‐$                                

Alley Total ‐$                                
Sealcoat
No sealcoating planned ‐$                                

Sealcoat Total ‐$                                

Sales Tax Projects Total 426,700$                       

TOTAL FY 24/25 426,700$                       

2,151,795$   

APPENDIX A:  5‐YEAR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FY 2021‐2025)

TOTAL CIP COST

5-Year Street Improvement Program
APX. A

Page 72 of 108



CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2020-2021

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Saturn 
Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

V
ie

w
 C

t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

rNBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Trai
l

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak

  S
t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

Clay
   St

Argus
   Ct

SEALCOAT: BIKE TRAIL TO STROUP'S

NON-SALES TAX SEALCOAT

Page 73 of 108



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Saturn 
Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

V
ie

w
 C

t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

rNBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Trai
l

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak

  S
t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

Clay
   St

Argus
   Ct

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2021-2022

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

SALES TAX ALLEY RESURFACING

Page 74 of 108



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Saturn 
Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

V
ie

w
 C

t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

rNBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Trai
l

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak

  S
t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

Clay
   St

Argus
   Ct

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2022-2023

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

OTHER FUNDED BLACKTOP

Page 75 of 108



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Saturn 
Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

V
ie

w
 C

t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

rNBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Trai
l

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak

  S
t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

Clay
   St

Argus
   Ct

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2023-2024

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

Page 76 of 108



West

Field

Jo D
aviess S

t

Dodge St

Bluff St

Tu
rn

ey
   

S
t

Muir St

R
id

ge
 S

t

Dandar St

Industria
l Ave

'A' St
'A' St

W Chetlain Ln

Franklin

St

StW
an

n 

Winnebago
       Dr

Elm St

Blackhawk

Sioux
  Ct

Fulton

St
Clinton

St

Alexander St

Campbell 

M
enom

inee 

Kelly Ln

St

Ja
m

es
 S
qu

ar
e

Spring St

St

W
es

t

S 
  D

od
ge

S

Gear

St

Mississippi St

Iowa St

W
at

er
 

S

Decatur

Bouthillier Boggess

Park

Adams  

4th

3r
d

4t
h

Lafayette 

St

St

St

St

5th

St

St

Ave

Be
nc

h

St
South

Hi
gh

St

St

Irvine

D
r

G
al

en
a

M
ai

n

St

C
om

m
er

ce

Water

St

St

Hill

Franklin

Green

St

M
eeker

St

N Dodge

St

Bridge St

Ap
ac

he
 C

t

N

Division
St

Barry

St

Hill  

Hill 

G
ear

West St

N

Clau
de

 S
t

3rd St

Jefferson St

Monroe  

Madison   

St

Do
dg

e

Wight  St

Washington

W
es

t
Mars

St

Ridge

Elk  St

Elk

N
Hick

or
y

St

Di
vis

io
n

St

Su
m

m
it

St
S

H
ic

ko
ry

S

St Maple St

Elk

St

Pa
rk

 A
ve

Jackson St

Domino

Saturn 
Ln

S
t

St

St

St
Dr

St

St

St

St

St

D
r

W  Red  Gates  Rd

St

Br
oa

dw
ay

W

Powder House Hill Rd

W
  R

ed
  G

at
es

  R
d

Te
ch

ni
ca

l

Dr

Cob
ble

sto
ne

Oldenburg

C
ou

nt
ry

V
ie

w
 C

t

W
oo

dl
an

d
   

 C
t

Bar
tel

l

Blvd

Coneflower
        Cir

Sproule Ln

Klockow St

Caroldon
        Ct

C
ro

ss

Rd

N

Rd

Ferry
Landing

Rives
   St

St

Johnson

     St

Apollo
   Ct

Ln

Ju
pi

te
r D

rNBlackjackRd

St

Ben
ch

S

W
illi

am
   

 S
t

S 
Pr

os
pe

ct
   

   
 S

t

St

Gear

St

Trai
l

WStag
ec

oa
ch

St

D
on

eg
an

St

N
R

d
S

ch
oo

l
Se

ct
io

n

St

N Jackson St

Brown
 St

Dew
ey

Av
e

Franklin

St

Dodge

N

N

H
ig

h
S

tM
eeker

Oak

  S
t

Bridge
   St

H
ill 

 S
t

Bu
ss

an
 A

ve
G

ra
nt

 C
t

Li
nc

ol
n 

Av
e

Pawnee
    Ct

Circ
le

Fi
re

Council
R

ya
n 

C
t

 Rolling
Hill    Ct

Irvine    Ct
Altenburg

     Ln

Spring

St

Ridge St

St

Young

St

S 
O

ak
   

St

Spare   St

West St

St

S

S

S H
igh

 S
t

S 
 H

ig
h 

 S
t

St

S

St

Pros
pe

ct N

St
Bench

St St

St

S

St

N

Main

N H
igh

St

St

N Hick
ory

     
 St

Hill St

Dris
co

ll S
t

Vine St

St

McBreams
Ln

Duer St

Shadow Bluff
      Dr

Ln

Blvd

Exchange St
Ave

Po
pl

ar

Clay
   St

Argus
   Ct

CITY OF GALENA - 5 YR. STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
APPENDIX A1

FY 2024-2025

LEGEND

SALES TAX FUNDED BLACKTOP

Page 77 of 108



Estimated

Map Surface (PASER) Resurfacing Square Surfacing Construction 

Location Alley Location Description Material Condition Material Feet Cost Priority Year

A Between Prospect and High (from Green to Washington) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 11,000    32,700$           1 Complete

B Between Prospect and High (south of Green Street) Asphalt 6 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 13,000    19,300$           10 Complete

C Between Prospect and High (south of Hill Street) Asphalt 5 Patch & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 3,900      5,000$             9 2021‐22

D Between Elk and Hill (from Prospect to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 8,700      26,000$           3 Complete

E North of Franklin (between Driscoll and Hickory) Asphalt 2 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 5,400      7,300$             6 Complete

F Between Elk and Hill (from Dodge to High) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 10,300    30,650$           2 Complete

G Between Franklin and Bridge (from Division to Hickory) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 7,300      7,300$             5 Complete

H Between Main and Bench (north of Hill Street) Gravel 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 4,300      12,800$           4 Complete

I Between Park and Third (South of US 20) Asphalt 1 Complete Asphalt Reconstruct 3,400      NA Private Complete

J Between Park and Third (from Lafayette to US 20) Asphalt 4 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 6,600      11,400$           8 Complete

K Between Park and Third  (from Jefferson to Madison) Asphalt 3 Patch Edges & 1‐2" Asphalt Overlay 10,200    17,700$           7 Complete

TOTAL 170,150$    

NOTE:  Cost estimates are based on at least 30‐50% of work being completed at same time.  Otherwise, mobilization costs for single work items will increase cost.

APPENDIX A2:  ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PLAN (FY 2013‐2022)

Based on Condition Assessment Conducted February 7, 2012

 5-Year Alley Improvement Plan
APX. A2

Page 78 of 108



FY 2008‐09 FY 2009‐10 FY 2009‐10 FY 2010‐11 FY 2010‐11 FY2011‐12 FY2012‐13 FY 2013‐14 FY 2014‐15 FY 2015‐16 FY 2016‐17 FY 2017‐18 FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20

Improvement Bouthillier 

Street

Dewey 

Avenue

Jackson Street Pre‐ERP & ERP Main Street, 

Meeker Street

Main Street,  

Gear Street,  

Flood Pumps

Downtown 

Flood Pumps

Downtown 

Flood Pumps

Park Avenue Kelly Lane, 

Alleys, Bench 

Street Repairs

Field, Hill, Elk, 

N. West, 

Division, South 

Bench Street

Poplar, N. 

Division, Clay, 

+ 7

Dodge, Wight, 

Powder House, 

Shadow Bluff

West, 4th, 

Meeker, 

Harrison, N. High, 

Jackson, Gear

Total

X  X X X X X X

X  X X X

X  X X X

X  X

X 
X

X  X X

Engineering 
 X   X  X  X X

Construction Sub‐Total    

Contingency (5%)    

$          746,476  $         84,956  $            127,090  $           330,615   $         207,200   $          181,700  $             325,567  $      4,629,059 

 

$            34,270  $                  ‐    $                       ‐    $                      ‐     $                     ‐     $                     ‐    $                         ‐    $          524,048 

TOTAL PROJECT COST  $        630,758   $     495,064   $       369,541   $          554,305   $         885,615   $           152,800   $            27,150   $          780,746   $         84,956   $            127,090   $           330,615   $         207,200   $          181,700   $             325,567   $      5,153,107 

Notes:

Completed Projects

Completed Projects

APPENDIX B:  NON‐HOME RULE SALES TAX (1/2%) STREET & INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM

4 (Fair) 2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

 $                     ‐   

 X 

 X 

$                       ‐   

 X 

Curb & Gutter
 X   X  X   X 

Sidewalk

Storm Sewer

Water 

Sanitary Sewer

 X 

 X 

3‐4 (Poor‐Fair) 4 (Fair)

 X   X 

 X 

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

Street (Rating) Condition 3‐4 (Poor‐

Fair)

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐

Poor)
Street Construction

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

2‐3 (Very Poor 

‐ Poor)

 

Interest Expense    $        130,258   $         133,674  $        96,996 

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL  $         751,941  $        500,500   $          502,521 

 X 

 $     398,068   $       292,476 

 $          77,065 

 $            27,150 

 $            51,784 

 $           152,800 

4 (Fair)

 X 

 X 

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

X

 X 

2‐3 (Very Poor ‐ 

Poor)

1.  Street Condition: Based on PASER rating system: 1 - Failed, 2 - Very Poor, 3 - Poor, 4 - Fair, 5 - Fair, 6 - Good, 7 - Good, 8 - Very Good, 9 - Excellent and 10 - Excellent
2.  Street Surface: all streets to be blacktop unless otherwise noted
3.  Gear Street costs were for sidewalk and curb and gutter on section across from Illinois Bank and Trust.   
4.  ERP = Emergency Street Repair Program grant from the Illinois Department of Transportation 

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax Streets Program: Completed Projects
APX. B

Page 79 of 108



Actual Year‐End 

Fiscal Year Fund Balance*

2008‐09 $190,949

2009‐10 $268,873

2010‐11 $454,405

2011‐12 $481,677
2012‐13 $843,873

1013‐14 $229,568

2014‐15 $254,534

2015‐16 $268,844

2016‐17 $115,564

2017‐18 $65,355

2018‐19 $77,964

Projected Year‐End 

Fiscal Year Fund Balance

2019‐20 $28,153

2020‐21 $23,056

2021‐22 $24,526

2022‐23 $9,476

2023‐24 $43,006

2024‐25 $52,507

Notes:
* Actual audited fund balance.  All other years are projected based on proposed CIP expenditures.

APPENDIX C: STREET IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND  

PROJECTED YEAR‐END FUND BALANCE 

On February 8, 2008, Galena voters approved a referendum to increase the local sales tax one‐half

percent (0.5%) for streets and related infrastructure improvements. The sales tax became effective

July 1, 2008 and generates approximately $430,000 per year.  The sales tax revenues are segregated

and managed in a separate fund (Fund 41). The following table shows the year‐end fund balance by

fiscal year.  

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax: Projected Fund Balance
APX. C

Page 80 of 108



APPENDIX D. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK AND EQUIPMENT PLAN (FY 2021‐2025)

Total FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

1961 125 Mobile Air Compressor ‐$             ‐$            

1991 Brush Chipper ‐$             ‐$            

2005 John Deere 410 Backhoe ‐$               ‐$            

2007 Sterling 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow Same High 130,000$    130,000$     130,000$   

2008 Tymco Street Sweeper Same Medium 160,000$      160,000$    160,000$   

2011 International 10 Ton Dump w/ Plow/Spreader Same Medium 135,000$    135,000$    135,000$   

2014 Chevy 1 Ton with Plow/Spreader/Dump Same Low 80,000$        80,000$      80,000$     

2014 Case Mini Excavator ‐$               ‐$            

2015 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump   Low 90,000$      90,000$      90,000$     

2015 285 John Deere Z‐Turn Mower Same Medium 23,500$      11,500$      12,000$      23,500$     

2015 Articulating Boom Mower ‐$             ‐$            

2016 3/4 Ton Dodge Pickup w/ Plow  90,000$      90,000$      90,000$     

2018 John Deere 524 End loader w/ Backhoe (50% Flood Control)* Same High 23,000$      11,500$       11,500$      23,000$     

2016 Brush grapple bucket ‐$             ‐$            

2016 Bat wing mower attachment for tractor ‐$             ‐$            

2017 758 John Deere Mower Same High 25,500$      12,000$       13,500$      25,500$     

2017 John Deere 320 Skid Loader (leased) (Flood Control)* Same High 20,300$      3,800$         4,000$        4,000$        4,000$        4,500$        20,300$     

2017 John Deere 6145 Tractor (50% Parks)* Same High 48,500$      9,000$         9,250$        10,000$      10,000$      10,250$      48,500$     

2017 Dodge Ram 1 Ton w/ Plow and Spreader ‐$            

2018 Dodge 3/4 Ton Pickup (Parks) ‐$            

2019 Ford 1 Ton Truck w/ Plow/Spreader/Dump ‐$            

2019 758 John Deere Mower with broom Same Low 13,500$        13,500$      13,500$     

  Light duty used lift truck (new item) Medium 20,000$      20,000$       20,000$     

TOTAL 859,300$    186,300$     184,750$    254,000$    117,500$    116,750$    859,300$   

Priority

High

Medium

Low

Notes

*  Leased equipment with equipment to be replaced with new in each year with a lease payment

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as soon as possible. 

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Description

Public Works Rolling Stock Plan
APX. D

Page 81 of 108



APPENDIX E. FIRE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2021‐2025)

Total FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24 FY24/25 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

Replace Pumper Truck Medium 150,000$                ‐$                         

TOTAL 150,000$                ‐$                         ‐$                          ‐$                         ‐$                   ‐$              ‐$                         

Note:
* The cost of some vehicle purchases are shared with the Galena Rural Fire District.

Priority

High

Medium

Low

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to complete the project as 

soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

Fire Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. E

Page 82 of 108



APPENDIX F.  POLICE DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2021‐2025)

Total FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24 FY24/25 Total CIP 
Rolling Stock Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost 

Replace oldest squad with new model High 25,000$             25,000$            25,000$            
Replace oldest squad with new model High 25,750$             25,750$             25,750$            
Replace oldest squad with new model High 26,500$             26,500$          26,500$            
Replace oldest squad with new model High 27,300$             27,300$            27,300$            
Replace oldest squad with new model High 28,100$             28,100$           28,100$            

TOTAL 132,650$           25,000$            25,750$           26,500$          27,300$            28,100$           132,650$          

Notes:
1.   An inflation factor of 3% per year has been applied.
2.  All police vehicle costs are General Fund obligations.
3.   Starting in FY 09, an estimated $4,000 per year from court fines would be dedicated to vehicle purchases. 

Priority

High

Medium

Low A project that would be desirable but would not address any health, safety, or other critical needs.   

Description

A project that is so imperative that every effort should be made, including the development of a new funding source, to 

complete the project as soon as possible. 

A project that should be completed when sufficient funds are available from established funding mechanisms. 

Police Department Rolling Stock Plan
APX. F

Page 83 of 108



APPENDIX G.  WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENT ROLLING STOCK PLAN (FY 2021‐2025)

Total FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25 Total CIP 
Year Rolling Stock Replace With Priority Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost*

1984 GMC spreader truck Same High 100,000$    100,000$          
1996 New Holland LX665 skid steer Same Medium 20,300$     3,800$     4,000$           4,000$        4,000$        4,500$        20,300$              
2001 Sniper 747‐4000R trailer jet Larger Medium 80,000$      80,000$              
2007 Chevy 3/4 ton pickup (red) Same Medium 25,000$       25,000$      25,000$              
2012 Chevy 3/4 ton w/ utility box/plow 3/4 Ton/plow/box High 60,000$     60,000$         60,000$              
2015 Ford 3/4 ton with utility box Same Low 50,000$     50,000$      50,000$              

500 Gallon Vacuum Truck New Medium ‐$                    
Lawn Tractor New/Larger Medium 10,000$     10,000$         10,000$              

‐$                    
‐$                    
‐$                    

TOTAL 165,300$   3,800$     74,000$         104,000$    109,000$    54,500$      345,300$          

Water Cost (1/2 of TOTAL) 82,650$     1,900$     37,000$         52,000$      54,500$      27,250$      172,650$          
Sewer Cost (1/2 of TOTAL)  82,650$     1,900$     37,000$         52,000$      54,500$      27,250$      172,650$          

Current Stock Replacement Stock

Water and Sewer Rolling Stock Plan
APX. G

Page 84 of 108



Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 20/21 High New 16' diving board $7,500 Pre‐Season 2020

2 FY 20/21 High Sand filtration check / change sand $7,500 Pre‐Season 2020

3 FY 20/21 High Repair concrete on side of slide tank $2,500 Pre‐Season 2020

4 FY 20/21 High Permanent shade structures $20,000 Pre‐Season 2020

5 FY 20/21 High New electric switch for pump room $4,000 Pre‐Season 2020

6 FY 20/21 High Install ventilation fans in pump room $4,000 Pre‐Season 2020

7 FY 20/21 High Replace 4 strainers $17,000 Pre‐Season 2020

8 FY 20/21 High Replace chlorinator $20,000 Pre‐Season 2020

9 FY 20/21 Medium Pool deck / concrete updates $15,000 Fall 2020

10 FY 20/21 Medium Pool house floors / non‐slip surface $10,000 Pre‐Season 2020

11 FY 20/21 Medium Storage shed for chemicals‐‐plan w/ new chlorination $3,000 Summer 2020

12 FY 20/21 Medium Shower head replacement, men's locker room $11,000 Pre‐Season 2020

FY 20/21 TOTAL $121,500

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 21/22 High Permanent shade structure concessions court $20,000 Fall 2021

2 FY 21/22 Medium Pool deck / concrete updates $15,000 Fall 2021

3 FY 21/22 Medium Maintenance and updates $10,000 Pre‐Season 2021

FY 21/22 TOTAL $45,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 22/23 High Permanent shade structure kiddie pool $20,000 Fall 2022

2 FY 22/23 Medium Pool deck / concrete updates $15,000 Fall 2022

3 FY 22/23 Medium Maintenance & updates $10,000 Pre‐Season 2021

FY 22/23 TOTAL $45,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 23/24 Medium Pool deck / concrete updates $15,000 Fall 2023

2 FY 23/24 Medium Maintenance & updates $10,000 Pre‐Season 2023

FY 22/23 TOTAL $25,000

Project # Year Priority Project Estimated Cost Project Start

1 FY 24/25 Medium Pool deck / concrete updates $15,000 Fall 

2 FY 24/25 Medium Maintenance & updates $10,000

FY 22/23 TOTAL $25,000

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $261,500

FUTURE PROJECTS Project Estimated Cost

  New large waterslide $120,000

Splash pad $175,000

(FY 2021‐2025)

Swimming Pool Maintenance and Improvement Plan
APX. H

Page 85 of 108



Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 20/21 High Analysis of HVAC system needs by consultant $12,500

2 FY 20/21 High Replace sidewalk on Bench Street $7,000

3 FY 20/21 Medium 300 new chairs and storage system (replace current chairs) $20,000

4 FY 20/21 Medium Exterior tuckpointing  $35,000

FY 2020‐21 TOTAL $74,500

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 21/22 Medium Energy efficiency projects $15,000

2 FY 21/22 Medium Stage lighting upgrades to improve efficiency/outdated equipment  $15,000

3 FY 21/22 Medium Video projection system, Apple TV, wiring $10,000

4 FY 21/22 Medium Exterior tuckpointing $35,000

FY 2021‐22 TOTAL $75,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 22/23 High HVAC rooftop unit replacement $75,000

2 FY 22/23 Medium Energy efficiency projects / upgrades / emergency repairs $15,000

3 FY 22/23 Medium Stage lighting upgrades $10,000

FY 2022‐23 TOTAL $100,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 23/24 High Boiler replacement $25,000

FY 2023‐24 TOTAL $25,000

Project # Year Project Estimated Cost

1 FY 24/25 High Floor refinishing  $10,000

2 FY 24/25 Medium Exterior tuckpointing $35,000

FY 2024‐25 TOTAL $45,000

TOTAL 5‐YEAR PLAN $319,500

FUTURE PROJECTS Project Estimated Cost

Building addition and remodel with kitchen, bathrooms & storage $500,000

   

APPENDIX I:  TURNER HALL MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

(FY 2021‐2025)

Turner Hall Maintenance and Improvement Plan
APX. I

Page 86 of 108



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:  Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager  

DATE:  January 9, 2020 

RE:  2020 Pool Hours, Rates, and Wages 

 

In planning for the 2020 Pool Season, I would like to present the following for your review and 
consideration:  
 

 2020 Schedule and Hours 
 New--Evening offerings for swimming lessons during Session 1 
 New--Wage adjustments based on the 2020 Illinois Minimum Wage Increase 
 New--Proposed rate increases 

 
 

2020 SCHEDULE AND HOURS  
No new changes are being proposed for our base hours of operation and length of pool season.  
 
Tentative Opening Day: Sunday, May 24, 2020—The Sunday of Memorial Day Weekend 
Tentative Closing Day: Sunday, August 16, 2020—The Sunday before public schools are in session 
 
Our opening and closing days are congruent with the Galena Public Schools schedule. Our pool 
managers and a significant number of our pool staff are either employed by or attend high school.  
Tentative last day of school: Thursday, May 21, 2020 
Tentative first day of school: The week of August 17, 2020 
 
Proposed hours of operation remain the same as in 2019. 
 
MONDAY – FRIDAY 
Adult Lap Swim 12:00 PM – 1:00 PM 
Open Swim 1:00 PM – 7:00 PM 
 
SATURDAY - SUNDAY 
Adult Lap Swim 11:00 AM – 12:00 PM 
Open Swim 12:00 PM – 7:00 PM   

 
Private Pool Parties may be scheduled from 7-9 p.m. daily based on availability. To manage staff hours, 
no more than three parties or after-hours events (in-service training, etc.) will be planned per week. This 
policy is the same as in 2019. 
 
 

Page 87 of 108



2 of 7 

 
2020 SWIMMING LESSONS 
New for 2020—In past years, weather conditions (cool temperatures and chance of rain) have been 
questionable for the first two classes in the morning during Session 1, limiting in-water learning time for 
students. Our lessons coordinator and I would like to propose that for Session One (only), June 8-19, we: 
 

 Begin the first lessons at 10:30 a.m. for Session One rather than at 9 a.m. 
 Close the pool to public swim at 6 p.m. rather than 7 p.m. from June 8-19 
 Offer swimming lessons from 6 p.m. – 6:45 p.m., providing more options 
 The Galena ARC families have pick-up no later than 6 p.m., and our census is typically low at that 

time. With proactive communication, we hope this offering should be an asset to our patrons 
and not any inconvenience.  

 
 
SESSION SCHEDULE 
Session 1—June 8-19, Fun Night Friday, June 19  
    *Lessons offered at 10:30 -11:55 a.m. and 6-6:45 p.m. Session 1 only 
Session 2—ARC—June 22-July 3, Fun Night Thursday, July 2 due to Independence Day Holiday 
Session 3—July 6-17, Fun Night Friday, July 17 
Session 4—July 20-31, Fun Night Friday, July 31 
 
Children ages 3 - 18 (2-week sessions) 9:00 AM – 11:55 AM (Sessions 2-4) 
Parent-Child Aquatics (4 days), dates TBA  *  
Adults (1 Week), dates TBA based on interest * 
*Potentially to be offered during Session 1, 6-6:45 p.m. for 4 days—Parent / Child 1 week,  
Adult Class the next week. Pending interest and instructor availability. 

 
                        
WAGES 
In February 2019, Gov. J.B. Pritzker signed into law a minimum wage increase for the State of Illinois that 
took effect January 1, 2020. The increase will reach $15 / hour in 2025. The rate schedule is as follows: 
 
2019 Illinois minimum wage:  $8.25 / hour 
 
Increases effective: 
January 2020   $9.00 / hour 
July 2020   $10.00 / hour 
2021    $11.00 / hour 
2022    $12.00 / hour 
2023    $13.00 / hour 
2024    $14.00 / hour  
2025    $15.00 / hour 
 
Table 1 presents proposed increases for our pool staff with consideration to the new minimum wage.  
In general, the proposal adds $1.75 per hour—the same increase to minimum wage—for each of the 
members of our concessions and lifeguarding team to keep their pay in balance. Our pool managers and 
lessons coordinator were new hires last year and recognized a rate adjustment at that time. I propose a 
$1 per hour increase for them to maintain the balance in compensation and responsibilities. 
 
In 2019, our starting wage for concessions team members was $8.75 / hour starting ($.50 over minimum 
wage) + approx. 3% ($.30 / hour) increase for returning employees. Lifeguards / lessons instructors 
started at $9.25 / hour ($1 over minimum wage) + approx. 3% ($.30 / hour) increase for returning 
employees.  

Page 88 of 108



3 of 7 

 

Table 1: 2020 Proposed Hourly Rates and Increases Per Hour  

Position 2019 Rate 2020 Pool Season  
Proposed Rate 

 
Pool Manager with Food 
Manager Certification 
 

$16.50 / hour 
 
 

$17.50 / hour 

Lessons Coordinator 
 

$13.75 / hour 
 

$15.00 / hour  
(includes $.25 hour for WSI 
Certification compensation) 

 
Water Safety Instructor 
(WSI) Certification 
 
 

WSI Certification is necessary to offer 
American Red Cross Swimming Lessons at 
our facility. Our goal is to have 2-3 WSIs 
on staff each year to offer coverage for 

time off and a contingency plan for 
vacancies. WSI is an intensive training / 

certification process. A lifeguard 
supervisor, pool manager, or lifeguard 

may earn their WSI and be compensated 
with approval from the Facilities Manager.  

Maximum 3 WSIs on staff per year.  
WSIs also lead in-service training to keep 
our staff apprised of skills and updates. 

 

+$.25 / hour 

Parent / Child Lessons 
Instructor 
 

$11.55 / hour $13.30 / hour 

Lifeguard Supervisors 
   Based on years of experience 

Current lifeguard wage +  
$1 / hour starting 

 
$11.05 - $12.65 

 

Current lifeguard wage +  
$1 / hour starting 

 
$12.80 - 13.65 / hour 

Certified Lifeguards (LG) 
   LG (new hire) 
   LG1 (1-year experience) 
   LG2 (2-years experience) 
   LG3 (3-years experience)  
   LG4 (4-years experience) 
 

 
$9.25 / hour 
$9.55 / hour 
$9.80 / hour 

$10.10 / hour 
$10.40 / hour 

 
$11.00 / hour 
$11.30 / hour 
$11.55 / hour 
$11.80 / hour 
$12.10 / hour 

 
Concessions Staff (C) 
   C (new hire) 
   C1 (1-year experience) 
   C2 (2-years experience) 
   C3 (3-years experience)  
   C4 (4-years experience) 
 

 
$8.75 / hour 
$9.05 / hour 
$9.30 / hour 
$9.55 / hour 
$9.80 / hour  

 
$10.50 / hour 
$10.80 / hour 
$11.05 / hour 
$11.30 / hour  
$11.55 / hour 

  
Based on 2019 hours work, the projected increase in wages for 2020 totals $25,752.  

    
 

 
 

Page 89 of 108



4 of 7 

 
POOL ADMISSION 
In 2017, City Council voted to increased base wages for pool staff. At that time, you also approved 
modest rate increases. I have researched current pricing for several area pools and have proposed 
possible options for revenue increases below, with the goal of keeping pricing affordable for our 
community and competitive with other area facilities. Please reference Table 2: Summary of Proposed 
Revenue Increases and Table 3: Area Pool Rate Comparison for supportive research. 

 
Daily admission rates will remain the same as in 2019, no increase.   
Infants: 0-1 year FREE   
Youth: 5 years & younger $3   
Students: 6 – 18 years $4   
Adults: 19 years and older $5 
*This would typically be a visitor expense.   

 
INDIVIDUAL SEASON PASSES 
Proposed $5 per pass rate increase for both pre-pool opening and post-opening. Passes were last 
increased $5 per person in 2017.  
Projected increase in revenue: $3,750 (750 season passes x $5 increase) 
*This would typically be a local investment and a cost savings for frequent swimmers and water walkers. 
Break even for a season pass is to attend the pool less than one time per week over a 10-week season.). 
 Pre-Pool Opening  
 Opening Day & Summer 
Infants: 0-1 year  FREE  FREE 
Youth: 1 – 18 years $30  $35   ($.43-.50 per day) 
Adults: 19 years and older $35  $40   ($.50-.57 per day) 
   
 
LESSONS 
Proposed $5 per lesson increase for children’s lessons and junior lifeguarding classes. No additional 
increase for parent / child or adult classes. Lessons were last increased $5 per person in 2017. The 
American Red Cross standard cost for lessons is $40.  
Projected increase in revenue: $2,540 (508 lessons x $5 increase) 
 
Children ages 3 -18 years  $35    
Junior Lifesaving Class $40   
Parent – Child Aquatics $20  No increase 
Adult $20  No increase 
   
 
POOL PARTIES 
Proposed $35 per pool party increase.  
(8 staff members per party x 2.5 hours x $1.75 increase per hour = $35). 
 
Two-hour pool party for less than 50 people  $210 
$1 per person charge for attendance over 50 people 
Projected increase in revenue: $525 (15 parties x $35) 
*The rate we currently charge for pool parties basically breaks even with staff labor cost.  
Pool parties are not creating extra revenue at the current price point.  
 
 
 
 

Page 90 of 108



5 of 7 

I would like to further discuss with our staff the opportunity to host “little people parties” and rent the 
kiddie pool—only--for private parties on Saturday mornings. The kiddie pool requires fewer staff 
members. Rental rate $100 for two hours (2 lifeguards x $11.55 / hour = $23.10) 

 
CONCESSIONS 
Review menu and increase pricing 15% overall.  
Projected increase in revenue: $3,713 
 
If all suggested rate increases are implemented and successful, an estimated $10,528 in additional 
revenues would be received in 2020. 2020 additional labor expenses ($25,752) minus proposed revenue 
increases ($10,528) results in a deficit $15,225 over costs from 2019 if all other items remain the same. 
 
Table 2: Summary of Proposed Revenue Increases  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

2020 
Proposed

Quantity Rate Rate Increase Projected
Pool Passes, Student 470 $30/$35 $5 $2,350
Pool Passes, Adult 280 $35/$40 $5 $1,400
Passes, Total Estimated Increased Revenue $3,750

Quantity Rate Rate Increase Projected
Lessons 508 $35 $5 $2,540
Lessons, Total Estimated Increased Revenue $2,540

Quantity Rate Rate Increase Projected
Concessions $24,750 15% $3,713
Concessions, Total Estimated Increased Revenue $3,713

Quantity Rate Rate Increase Projected
Pool Parties 15 $210 $35 $525
Pool Parties, Total Estimated Increased Revenue $525

Total Estimated Revenues with Price Increases $10,528
Total Projected Expenses with Labor Increase $25,752

Projected Overage from Expenses $15,225

2020

Page 91 of 108



Table 3: 2020 Galena-Area Pool Rate Comparison 

6 of 7 
 

 Admission Swim Lessons Pool Parties Other 
Alice T. Virtue Memorial 
Pool 

Free—Infants up to age 1 year 
$3—ages 1-5 
$4—ages 6-18 
$5—ages 19+ 
Student Passes 
$25 per person pre-opening 
$30 per person pool opening  
 
Adult Passes 
$30 per person pre-opening 
$35 per person pool opening 
 
 

CURRENT 2019 
$30 per person / per session 
$35 Jr. Lifeguarding 
 
Parent & Child (ages 6 
months to 2 years / 4 days) 
Aquatics $20 
 
Adult Lessons (4 days) $20 
 

$175—2-hour rental  

East Dubuque /  
Dunleith Park 

$3 per person 
Pool Passes 
$45—individual 
$100—family up to 6 
members, +$25 each 
 

$40 per person / per session 
{M-Th for two weeks} 
 

$150 first hour 
+$75 second hour 

 

Shullsburg $3.50 per person 
Under age 4 free with paid 
adult 
Pool Passes 
$50—Student 
$55—Adult 
$100--Family 
$25—Individual Weekly Pass 
$35—Family Weekly Pass 
 

$35 with a pool pass 
$40 without a pool pass 

$100 one-hour rental 
$125 two-hour rental 

 

Stockton $5 in-district residency 
$8 out-of-district 
Pool Passes 
$75 – 1 patron 
$100 – 2 patrons 
$125 – 3 patrons 
$150 – 4 patrons (additional 
$25 per family member) 

$40 per person / per session 
$25 Jr. Lifesaving 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Open weekends after 
school starts through Sept 1 

Page 92 of 108



Table 3: 2020 Galena-Area Pool Rate Comparison 

7 of 7 
 

  
 

 
Dubuque Iowa /  
Leisure Services 

Free—ages 3 and under 
$2—ages 4-17 
$4—ages 18+ 
$2—Senior Citizens (age 62 
and retired) 
 
Passes 
$135 per household / $162 
non-resident + $6 per person 
more than 6 people 
Youth Pass $50 R / $60 NR 
Adult Pass $85 R / $102 NR 
 
Preschool Playgroup— 
Parents and children age 6 
and younger. Noon-12:55 pm. 
Regular admission applies and 
pool passes are valid. Children 
must be accompanied by their 
parents at all times. 

YMCA Lifeguard Certification 
$180 / $210 

Flora & Sutton Pools 
available for evening rental 
7-9 pm, Friday & Saturday, 
Saturday & Sunday 
respectively 
 
Sutton—2-hour rental up to 
300 people $250 
Flora—2-hour rental up to 
300 people $325 
 
Water Playgrounds at Sutton 
and Flora may be  rented 
Saturday & Sunday, 11 am – 
1 pm $80 

Adult Swim / Water 
Walking Pass $4 (1 hour, 
noon-1 pm) 
 
Breastfeeding allowed. 
Bottle feeding allowed on 
pool deck or concessions 
area only. Glass or 
breakable plastic bottles 
are not allowed in the 
facility. 

 

 

Thank you for your consideration. I welcome any questions or thoughts you may have. 

 

 

Page 93 of 108



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 19, 2020 

RE:    Inoperable Vehicle Ordinance    
 
 
Our code of ordinances includes a chapter that defines inoperable vehicles and sets forth rules 
to prevent such vehicles from being stored outside and becoming nuisances.  During efforts to 
enforce the inoperable vehicle ordinance in 2019, our staff was made aware of an inconsistency 
between our ordinance and the state statute pertaining specifically to “historic vehicles over 25 
years of age”.  The attached ordinance was drafted to remedy the inconsistency and improve 
our ability to manage nuisances.   
 
Our ordinance exempts historic vehicles over 25 years of age from being considered inoperable, 
even if they are inoperable and are stored outside.  The state law exempts historic vehicles over 
25 years of age from being considered inoperable, but only if they are operable or capable of 
being driven with their own motors.   
 
The proposed ordinance would adopt the language of the state law pertaining to historic 
vehicles.  Under the proposed ordinance, a vehicle over 25 years of age would be considered a 
nuisance if stored outside of a building and not operable.  The proposed ordinance would 
improve the ability of our staff to control nuisances in the community.  The ordinance was 
prepared with the input of the City Attorney who is responsible for handling inoperable vehicle 
cases that reach court. 
 
I recommend that you adopt the proposed ordinance.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions.  Thank you.  
 
 
 

 

Page 94 of 108



 1

Ordinance #20‐______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 90 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 90 of the Galena Code of Ordinances defines inoperable 

vehicles, sets forth rules for the possession of inoperable vehicles on property in the City 
of Galena, and includes remedies for the City to order the removal inoperable vehicles 
that are in violation of the rules, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Galena Code of Ordinances exempts “historic vehicles over 25 
years of age” that are stored outside of a building from being declared inoperable, and  

 
WHEREAS, State of Illinois Statute, 65 ILCS 5/11‐40‐3, provides the statutory 

authority for the City of Galena ordinance pertaining to inoperable vehicles, and 
 
WHEREAS, the state statute exempts “operable” historic vehicles over 25 years 

of age from being declared inoperable, even when stored outside, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Galena seeks to align its inoperable vehicle ordinance with 

the state statute as it pertains to historic vehicles, and 
 
WHEREAS, this ordinance amendment is aimed at strengthening the controls 

over public nuisances to improve the health, safety, and well‐being of the community 
and to further protect the citizens and visitors of the community.    

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo 

Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

    SECTION I:  CHAPTER 90.02, “AUTHORITY TO DECLARE INOPERABLE VEHICLE A 
NUISANCE,” shall be amended as follows: 

 
(A)  Definition. For the purpose of this section the following definition shall apply 

unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 
 
 90.02 (A) INOPERABLE MOTOR VEHICLE.  
       
      (3)   Shall not include a motor vehicle which has been rendered 

temporarily incapable of being driven under its own power in order to 
perform ordinary service or repair operations nor to any motor vehicle 
that is kept within a building when not in use, to operable historic 
vehicles over 25 years of age, or to a motor vehicle on the premises of a 
place of business engaged in wrecking or junking of motor vehicles. 
 

Page 95 of 108



 2

    SECTION II:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the provisions 
of this ordinance are hereby repealed.  
 
    SECTION III:  Passed on this ____ day of _____, A.D., 2020, in open session. 
             
 
AYES:       NAYS:   
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

Page 96 of 108



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    January 8, 2020 

RE:    Surplus Property   
 
In order to sell or otherwise dispose of property that the city no longer finds useful, an ordinance 
must be passed declaring the property “surplus.”  I am presenting for your consideration a surplus 
property ordinance for various items of construction material that are stored at the old landfill site.    
 
Many of our completed construction yield excess materials, such as manholes and pipes, that are 
delivered  to  us  by  the  contractor  upon  completion.  The materials  have  accumulated  at  the  old 
landfill for many years.  Our Public Works Department has sorted the materials and saved those that 
could be used by the City. We propose to offer the remainder of the materials for sale to the highest 
bidder(s) by sealed bid. We believe area contractors and others may find the materials useful. The 
full list of materials is attached to the proposed ordinance.  
 
I  request your approval of  the surplus property ordinance and suggest you consider waiving the 
second reading.  As you will recall, the second reading may be waived by an affirmative vote of not 
less than four council members after an express determination on the record that the circumstances 
for doing so are just.   

   

 

Page 97 of 108



Ordinance #20‐ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF  
MUNICIPALLY OWNED PERSONAL PROPERTY  

 
    WHEREAS in the opinion of the corporate authorities of the City of Galena, it is no 
longer necessary or useful to or for the best interest of the City of Galena to retain the items of 
personal property now owned by it and fully described in Appendix A, attached hereto and 
made part hereof.  

 
  BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, as 
follows: 

 
  SECTION I: Pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11‐76‐4, the corporate authorities find that the 
personal property, miscellaneous construction materials, listed in Appendix A, attached hereto 
and made part hereof, now owned by the City of Galena is no longer useful and the best 
interest of the City of Galena will be served by its sale.   
 
  SECTION II:  The City Administrator is hereby authorized to sell the items individually or 
in a lot(s) by sealed bid to the highest bidder(s) after public notice of the request for bids. 
 
  SECTION III:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval in the manner provided by law. 
 
             SECTION IV:  Passed on this ____ day of ________________, A.D., 2020, in open Council. 
       
      AYES:        NAYS: 
            
            __________________________________________       
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR      
 
________________________________________ 
ATTEST: MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

   

Page 98 of 108



Appendix A: Surplus Property Items List 
 
 

Quantity  Item Description  Dimensions  Condition  Notes 

6  San Sewer Tee, SDR ‐ 35?  18" x 18" x 8"  Fair  May need new gaskets 

1  Galv. Steel End Section  30" dia  Good    

1  HDPE End Section  24" dia  Good    

8  HDPE Single Wall Corrugated  18"dia  x 20'L  Good    

3  HDPE Storm Tee  12" x 12" x 12"  Good    

1  HDPE Storm Bend, 45 degrees  12" dia  Good    

1  HDPE Storm Elbow, 90 degrees  10" dia  Good    

1  CMP Culvert  24" dia x 10' L  Good    

1  CMP Culvert  30" dia x 15' L  Good    

1  RCP MH Chamber  72" dia x 7' H  Good  2 holes @ 48" dia each on sides 

2  RCP MH Base  48" dia x 3' H  New    

1  RCP MH Base  48" dia x 4' H  Good    

1  RCP MH Riser  48" dia x 5' H  Good    

6  RCP MH Riser  48" dia x 4' H  Good  1 has 36" hole on the side 

4  RCP MH Top Cones  48" dia  Good    

1  RCP MH Base  48" dia x 6' H  Good  No floor 

2  RCP Pipes  36" dia x 8' L  Fair  Very old ‐ might be from Tot‐Lot, one has broken side 

2  RCP MH Cap  48" dia  Good    

1  RCP MH Riser  48" dia x 2' H  Good    

5  RCP End Section  15" dia  Fair  2 male connection; 3 female connection 

3  HDPE Double Wall Smooth  30" dia x 20' L  Good    

1  RCP MH Riser  72" dia x 30" H  Poor  25% female end broken 

1  RCP MH Cap  72" dia  Good    

1  Treated Wood Pole  55‐60' L  Fair    

 

Page 99 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ACCESS SYSTEMS (120766)
528198 1 Invoice COPIER BILL 01/07/2020 194.79 01.21.512.03

Total ACCESS SYSTEMS (120766): 194.79

AMERICAN LEGION POST 193 (118878)
010220 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/02/2020 455.00 01.41.652.00

Total AMERICAN LEGION POST 193 (118878): 455.00

APCA (120765)
2332020 1 Invoice APCA 2020 DUES 12/20/2019 50.00 01.21.814.06

Total APCA (120765): 50.00

ARGUS DENTAL & VISION INC. (120754)
189060 1 Invoice VISION INSURANCE 12/21/2019 130.28 01.13.451.01

Total ARGUS DENTAL & VISION INC. (120754): 130.28

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
010120 1 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/LON 01/01/2020 .10 22.22.552.00
010120 2 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 01/01/2020 6.63 01.21.552.00
010120 3 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  01/01/2020 56.42 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 63.15

AZAVAR AUDIT (120348)
148950 - FIN 1 Invoice REV. AUDIT FEES 01/01/2020 54.34 01.11.549.00

Total AZAVAR AUDIT (120348): 54.34

CIVIC SYSTEMS (865)
CVC18621 1 Invoice SOFTWARE ANNUAL SUP 12/30/2019 809.00 13.44.532.00
CVC18621 2 Invoice SOFTWARE ANNUAL SUP 12/30/2019 2,075.00 51.42.532.00
CVC18621 3 Invoice SOFTWARE ANNUAL SUP 12/30/2019 2,075.00 52.43.532.00

Total CIVIC SYSTEMS (865): 4,959.00

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
118463 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 09/30/2019 783.90 15.41.614.00
119678 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 12/18/2019 59.70 01.41.614.04

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 843.60

COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA (120335)
557007 1 Invoice SALT 12/18/2019 1,893.01 01.41.614.07
566283 1 Invoice SALT 01/03/2020 3,757.50 01.41.614.07

Total COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA (120335): 5,650.51

DI GESU, MICHAEL (120768)
010820 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL REIMBU 01/08/2020 460.00 01.41.517.02

Page 100 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total DI GESU, MICHAEL (120768): 460.00

DOG WASTE DEPOT (120612)
316176 1 Invoice DOG WASTE BAGS 01/06/2020 1,208.79 17.52.652.01

Total DOG WASTE DEPOT (120612): 1,208.79

DRIVE LINE, INC. (285)
243841 1 Invoice 2016 1-TON PLOW 12/30/2019 2,001.11 01.41.613.03
243894 1 Invoice BEARING 2015 1-TON 01/02/2020 39.00 01.41.613.15

Total DRIVE LINE, INC. (285): 2,040.11

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
149591 1 Invoice SERVICE FIRE EXTINGUI 12/12/2019 392.20 22.22.652.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 392.20

EUCLID MANAGERS (120626)
010120 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL #564 01/01/2020 1,811.66 01.13.451.01

Total EUCLID MANAGERS (120626): 1,811.66

EXACT PEST SOLUTIONS, INC. (120708)
19006 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL 12/11/2019 80.00 58.54.511.00

Total EXACT PEST SOLUTIONS, INC. (120708): 80.00

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
7298 1 Invoice FLOOD PUMPS 12/18/2019 900.00 20.25.576.01

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 900.00

FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917)
13345 1 Invoice 2015 1-TON TIRE 01/06/2020 15.00 01.41.613.15

Total FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917): 15.00

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
75077 1 Invoice SQUAD 5 MAINTENANCE 01/02/2020 36.21 01.21.814.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 36.21

GALENA FIRE DEPT. (91)
010620 1 Invoice DEATH BENEFIT PLAN 01/06/2020 1,770.00 22.22.452.01

Total GALENA FIRE DEPT. (91): 1,770.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00070183 1 Invoice PUBLIC HEARING NOTIC 12/19/2019 50.35 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 50.35

Page 101 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

GALL'S, INC. (712)
14872106 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/KEITH 01/02/2020 122.91 01.21.471.15

Total GALL'S, INC. (712): 122.91

GAME TIME (120767)
PJI-0121079 1 Invoice GRANT PARK PLAYGROU 08/17/2019 4,798.35 17.52.870.04

Total GAME TIME (120767): 4,798.35

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
010120 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 14.36 01.21.511.00
010120 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 17.99 01.41.863.09
010120 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 12.59 01.41.652.00
010120 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 119.68 01.41.653.00
010120 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 57.91 17.52.517.02
010120 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 38.63 17.52.652.00
010120 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 9.04 22.22.613.00
010120 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 70.18 22.22.652.00
010120 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/01/2020 15.51 58.54.654.01

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 355.89

GEOSTAR MECHANICAL, INC. (119731)
I32273 1 Invoice BOILER REPAIRS 11/11/2019 500.00 01.21.511.00
I32614 1 Invoice BACKFLOW INSPECTION 01/03/2020 4,928.00 51.42.549.01

Total GEOSTAR MECHANICAL, INC. (119731): 5,428.00

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
105095 1 Invoice WEBSITE CHANGES/HOS 11/01/2019 131.05 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 131.05

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
011320 1 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  01/13/2020 270.00 01.13.511.08
011320 2 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 01/13/2020 290.00 01.13.511.07
011320 3 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 01/13/2020 258.50 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 818.50

HART, MICHAEL (120770)
121919 1 Invoice REFUND 12/19/2019 400.00 01.11.912.00

Total HART, MICHAEL (120770): 400.00

HIGLEY (120328)
5687 1 Invoice BATHROOM CLEANER 01/03/2020 83.50 01.13.654.00

Total HIGLEY (120328): 83.50

HYDE, MARY BETH (101)
010920 1 Invoice HOLIDAY LIGHTS 01/09/2020 165.08 01.13.511.01

Page 102 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total HYDE, MARY BETH (101): 165.08

IFIBER (119998)
F-2001092 1 Invoice IFIBER CONNECTION 01/01/2020 375.00 22.22.652.00

Total IFIBER (119998): 375.00

IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260)
73435 1 Invoice DESIGN PLAN 12/18/2019 549.00 51.42.831.05

Total IIW ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, PC (260): 549.00

IL FIREFIGHTER'S ASSOC., INC. (461)
2307 1 Invoice DUES 12/22/2019 125.00 22.22.561.00

Total IL FIREFIGHTER'S ASSOC., INC. (461): 125.00

JL TECH, LLC (120693)
2385 1 Invoice COMPUTER WORK 12/09/2019 120.00 01.21.512.00

Total JL TECH, LLC (120693): 120.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
010120 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 01/01/2020 5,362.71 15.41.572.00
010120 2 Invoice LIFT STATION/ELECTRIC 01/01/2020 126.21 52.43.850.09
010120 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 01/01/2020 551.31 01.21.571.01
010120 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 01/01/2020 135.63 12.10.571.01
010120 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 01/01/2020 94.60 17.52.571.01
010120 6 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/ELECT 01/01/2020 463.14 20.25.576.01
010120 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 01/01/2020 351.35 22.22.576.01
010120 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 01/01/2020 338.49 58.54.571.01
010120 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 01/01/2020 36.23 01.41.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 7,459.67

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
122019 1 Invoice 205-01, 205-02 SPO'S 12/20/2019 18.75 01.16.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 18.75

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
010120 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 01/01/2020 200.12 01.21.538.00
010120 2 Invoice RADIO SERVICE 01/01/2020 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
121519 1 Invoice CLOTHING 12/15/2019 77.35 01.41.579.02
121519 2 Invoice EQUIPMENT 12/15/2019 1,364.51 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 1,441.86

Page 103 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9307250574 1 Invoice GARBAGE SUPPLIES 12/17/2019 287.86 17.52.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 287.86

LIFELINE AUDIO VIDEO TECH. (118955)
63216 1 Invoice LED LIGHT FLICKERING 10/28/2019 285.00 58.54.511.00

Total LIFELINE AUDIO VIDEO TECH. (118955): 285.00

LOCKSMITH EXPRESS (105)
134626 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 12/17/2019 24.00 01.41.652.00

Total LOCKSMITH EXPRESS (105): 24.00

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
010720 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 01/07/2020 9,945.00 17.52.870.05

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 9,945.00

MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (120561)
26131522 1 Invoice COLORED COPIES 12/19/2019 191.66 01.13.579.00
26131522 2 Invoice COPIES 12/19/2019 298.27 01.13.579.00
26131522 3 Invoice KIP 12/19/2019 244.26 52.43.549.00

Total MIDWEST BUSINESS PRODUCTS (120561): 734.19

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
199549 1 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 01/01/2020 45.00 22.22.929.00
200353 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 01/01/2020 14,562.25 13.44.540.04
200353 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 01/01/2020 5,023.25 13.44.540.00
200353 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 01/01/2020 60.00 22.22.929.00
200353 4 Invoice MOVE GLASS RECYCLIN 01/01/2020 125.00 13.44.929.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 19,815.50

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
313416 1 Invoice FLOOR JACKS & JACK ST 12/05/2019 549.97 22.22.840.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 549.97

NATIONWIDE (120773)
C-2299279-0 1 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE/HE 01/09/2020 716.10 01.21.814.06

Total NATIONWIDE (120773): 716.10

NICOR (151)
010120 1 Invoice MARKETHOUSE RESTRO 01/01/2020 64.87 01.13.511.06
010120 2 Invoice POOL-GAS 01/01/2020 124.38 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 189.25

NICOR (F) (118924)
010120 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 01/01/2020 223.90 01.13.571.05

Page 104 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

010120 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 01/01/2020 349.40 01.21.571.05
010120 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 01/01/2020 670.87 01.41.571.05
010120 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 01/01/2020 517.19 22.22.571.05
010120 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 01/01/2020 731.20 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 2,492.56

OLDENBURG, MATTHEW J. (120082)
010820 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 01/08/2020 72.58 01.45.563.00

Total OLDENBURG, MATTHEW J. (120082): 72.58

PAGEFREEZER SOFTWARE, INC. (120769)
7022 1 Invoice SOCIAL MEDIA ARCHIVE 12/16/2019 500.00 22.22.929.00
7022 2 Invoice SOCIAL MEDIA ARCHIVE 12/16/2019 475.00 58.54.532.00
7022 3 Invoice SOCIAL MEDIA ARCHIVE 12/16/2019 475.00 59.55.553.00

Total PAGEFREEZER SOFTWARE, INC. (120769): 1,450.00

PETTY CASH/CITY HALL (161)
010820 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/08/2020 7.34 01.13.511.01
010820 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/08/2020 8.56 01.13.511.07
010820 3 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 01/08/2020 20.18 01.13.651.02
010820 4 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 01/08/2020 16.00 01.14.562.00

Total PETTY CASH/CITY HALL (161): 52.08

RAMSEY, BRITTANY (120772)
010820 1 Invoice DAMAGE DEPOSIT REFU 01/08/2020 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total RAMSEY, BRITTANY (120772): 200.00

RIVER CITY PAVING (56)
4300017914 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 12/16/2019 735.74 15.41.614.00

Total RIVER CITY PAVING (56): 735.74

RYAN, ANGELA (119753)
010820 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 01/08/2020 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total RYAN, ANGELA (119753): 200.00

SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR COMPANY (120760)
90482240 1 Invoice ELEVATOR INSPECTION 12/13/2019 650.00 01.21.511.00

Total SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR COMPANY (120760): 650.00

SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048)
19-012-653 1 Invoice ADULT ELECTRODES 12/27/2019 39.95 01.21.652.04

Total SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048): 39.95

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
247-13764 1 Invoice ALARM MAINTENANCE 12/28/2019 27.00 01.13.511.01

Page 105 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

STEFFES, JASON (120771)
010820 1 Invoice CR BALANCE REFUND 01/08/2020 18.32 98.115.0

Total STEFFES, JASON (120771): 18.32

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954)
0155886 1 Invoice ENGINEERING 12/12/2019 421.35 52.43.532.02

Total STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954): 421.35

SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181)
944776 1 Invoice WELDING SUPPLIES 12/24/2019 187.00 01.41.652.02

Total SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181): 187.00

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
2281 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 12/30/2019 275.00 13.44.929.00

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 275.00

TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY (120385)
010220 1 Invoice FUNERAL PLANTS 01/02/2020 75.00 01.21.549.00

1989 1 Invoice HOLIDAY GIFTS 01/02/2020 50.00 01.11.929.01
1989 2 Invoice SYMPATHY FLOWERS 01/02/2020 40.00 01.11.929.01

Total TAMMY'S PIGGLY WIGGLY (120385): 165.00

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601)
T2014127 1 Invoice MONTHLY CHARGE FOR  12/16/2019 265.62 01.21.542.00

Total TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT REV FUND (120601): 265.62

TELEGRAPH HEARLD (118921)
122019 1 Invoice TH SUBSCRIPTION 12/20/2019 144.00 01.11.553.01

Total TELEGRAPH HEARLD (118921): 144.00

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
Q20764 1 Invoice CITY HALL HVAC 12/20/2019 870.00 01.13.511.01

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 870.00

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
8059 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY RENTAL 12/16/2019 495.00 17.52.579.01

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 495.00

US CELLULAR (92)
010120 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 01/01/2020 37.62 01.41.552.00
010120 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 01/01/2020 37.62 01.11.552.00
010120 3 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 01/01/2020 75.22 01.21.552.01

Page 106 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

010120 4 Invoice HUNTINGTON/CELL PHO 01/01/2020 36.95 01.216.0
010120 5 Invoice TONY/CELL PHONE 01/01/2020 43.59 01.261.0
010120 6 Invoice POOL PHONE 01/01/2020 2.60 59.55.552.00

Total US CELLULAR (92): 233.60

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
9845200643 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 01/01/2020 150.18 53.48.555.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 150.18

VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507)
100719 1 Invoice PLAQUE/TREE DONATIO 10/07/2019 55.00 17.52.870.01

Total VINCENT & SONS, J. P.  (507): 55.00

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D082752 1 Invoice RESTROOM SUPPLIES 12/10/2019 35.15- 58.54.654.01
D083201 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER 12/17/2019 74.62 01.13.654.01
D083202 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER 12/17/2019 149.24 01.13.654.00
D083203 1 Invoice TOILET PAPER 12/17/2019 150.96 01.13.654.01

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 339.67

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
010820 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITOR 01/08/2020 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 110.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
12485 1 Invoice TREE REMOVAL 01/01/2020 600.00 01.41.517.02

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 600.00

WORKSHOP, THE (120647)
46690 1 Invoice POLICE/RUG SERVICE 12/31/2019 66.00 01.21.651.00
46690 2 Invoice FIRE/RUG SERVICE 12/31/2019 82.50 22.22.538.01

Total WORKSHOP, THE (120647): 148.50

Grand Totals: 86,802.69

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 5418674
Vendor number hash - split: 7222521
Total number of invoices: 81
Total number of transactions: 127

Page 107 of 108



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 12/24/2019 - 1/31/2020 Jan 09, 2020  11:16AM

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 86,802.69 86,802.69

Grand Totals: 86,802.69 86,802.69

Page 108 of 108


	00.00 Agenda 01.13.20
	00.0007 Minutes cc122319
	01.0008 IIW Amendment
	02.0009 Oktoberfest 2020
	03.0394 Downtown Parking
	Parking memo to coucnil 010720
	08.0394 Downtown Parking Report
	Parking memo to coucnil 082819
	2019 Downtown Parking Outline 091719

	Parking Implementation Plan 010620
	Paid Parking $
	Paid Parking Proforma 100319
	Paid Parking Proforma 100319 b
	Paid Parking Proforma 100319 c


	04.0514 Galena Country Tourism Proposals
	Summer 2020 Council proposal signed
	GCT Summer 2020 Council
	Food Truck Fight® Galena Proposal

	05.0517 CIP Draft FY 21-25
	Council CIP Memo 2020
	08.0517 CIP Draft FY 21-25
	Cover 2019 Draft
	Text 2019
	A Attachment
	B Attachment
	C Attachment
	1 Appendix A
	2 Street Maps A1
	3 Appendix A2
	4 Appendix B
	5 Appendix C
	6 Appendix D
	7 Appendix E
	8 Appendix F
	9 Appendix G
	10 Appendix H
	11 Appendix I


	06.0011 2020 Pool Report
	2020 Pool Start Up Memo to City Council
	2020-A-Comparison

	07.0012 Inoperable Vehicles
	011320a
	Inoperable Vehicles 2020

	08.0013 Surplus Property
	09.0014 Warrants 01.13.20



